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AsSEMBLYMAN RICHARD J. CODEY (Chairman): Good morning. We would 

like to start today's hearing. The subject matter includes two bills, A-879, 

by Assemblyman Hurley, and A-2144, by Assemblyman Gallo. Assemblyman Gallo, 

would you like to start the hearing, please? 

A S S E M B L Y M A N D E A N A. G A L L 0: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

I have given you a copy of Assemblyman Hurley's remarks and I would hope 

that they will be made part of the record. He was unable to attend, and 

he asked me to submit them on his behalf. I would also like to thank you, 

Mr. Chairman, for having these bills heard. They are bills of what I classify 

significant importance. 

I come before you to ask for your support for something that, 

as I indicated, is very important: the preservation and the integrity of 

the Legislature. I do not exaggerate when I say that it is essential that 

the Legislature require oversight of the work done by the Division of State 

and Regional Planning if this body is to maintain its position as a co­

equal branch of government. The bills you have before you this morning 

do this, and I hope that you give them careful consideration. 

My bill, A-2144, and a bil~ by my colleague Assemblyman Hurley, 

A-879, which you also have on your agenda, requires that any plan proposed 

by the Division of State and Regional Planning in the Department of Community 

Affair~ pursuant to P.L. 1961, c. 15, be submitted to the Legislature for 

review prior to its implementation. Assemblyman Hurley and I differ a bit 

on the specific measures which the Legislature must take in order to approve 

or disapprove a proposed plan submitted to it by the Division. Nonetheless, 

the principle is the same: bureaucracy is required to receive the approval 

of the Legislature before it implements plans which may have a wide-ranging 

impact on New Jersey. 

My bill stipulates that any plan from the Division would be referred 

to the appropriate standing reference committees in the Legislature by the 

presiding officer in each house. Those committees would have 45 days within 

which to comment. No plan would be deemed approved unless the Legislature 

passed a concurrent resolution approving it within 60 days. Assemblyman 

Hurley's bill provides that the plan would be considered approved unless 

the Legislature disapproved it within 60 days of transmittal. 

These bills have been introduced to address a specific problem 

which now faces us. In 1977, the Division of State and Regional Planning 

circulated a draft State Development Guide Plan for comment. Some revisions 

were made and another revised draft plan was published prior to public hearing 

this Fall. The comments requested by the Department of Community Affairs 

this Fall during the public hearing involved the proposed use of this plan. 

The Administration wanted comment on whether the plan should be used in 

concert with New Jersey's regulatory law, or whether the plan should only 

be used as a guide for the State with regard to the investment of State 

resources. Either way, it is clear that the State Development Guide Plan 

will have a tremendous impact on New Jersey. At this point, the Legislature 

has had nothing to say about this plan. 

If the State Develcpment Guide Plan is implemented, or enforced, 

by the Administration through the use of regulatory law, it would constitute 

the greatest expansion of Executive power this State has ever seen. It 
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would be difficult to envision a more blatant and extensive seizure of power 

by the State. 

Think what this would mean: The whole weight of New Jersey's 

Administrative Code, which now numbers some 35 volumes of regulations, would 

be brought to bear upon the counties and municipalities of New Jersey to 

force them to bend to the will of the Executive Branch - in this case, more 

specifically the Department of Community Affairs - with regard to zoning, 

planning, and development. The State would thus effectively structure New 

Jersey without regard to local governments. Local governments would become 

incidental to the development of our State. 

Even if the State chooses to use the plans only as a guide for 

State investment, it would be able to effectively control development in 

New Jersey just as well. So many municipalities and counties have predicted 

their plans for housing and roads upon State approval and State investment 

that it would be disastrous for them if the State channeled all investments 

away from them. Many of these towns have supported bond issues which they 

now might not benefit from. 

We are talking about State and Federal monies here. The Governor 

controls the flow of Federal money and State money at this point, not the 

Legislature. The destination of Federal monies as well as State investment 

would be affected by this plan. Millions and millions of dollars are involved. 

This money is a decisive club. Road money, sewer grants, Green 

Acre money, public transportation funds, water supply system money - maybe 

even EDA loans - would be used as leverage to force the approval or disapproval 

of a variety of development projects. 

If you have had a chance to read the plan, you will realize that 

it is the means by which the Governor is going to accomplish his "urban 

revitalization" plans. The development of the State is funneled into approximately 

30% of the State where development already exists. The rest of the State 

will be left for "limited growth" purposes and agricultural use. The population 

estimates are questionable in the plan, they even differ from the independent 

consultant's figures upon which the Pinelands plan was based, and they suggest 

that the Governor is forcing his own will on New Jersey and using the Department 

of Community Affairs to do it, even if his plans don't fit the facts. 

There are several specific problems with the provisions of the 

State Development Guide Plan. I will mention one which strikes close to 

horne. Right now, the Public Advocate has engaged several of the towns in 

my district in a suit over low-cost housing. Actually there are 27 municipalities 

that are being sued. The State Development Guide Plan has many of these 

towns in a "limited growth" area. I can foresee a serious conflict between 

the so-called Mt. Laurel decision and the State Development Guide Plan. 

Our municipalities are going to be caught between an arrogant Judiciary 

and an equally arrogant Executive. 

Almost two years ago this Guide Plan was being enforced before 

it was even approved by the Department that created it. Take, for example, 

the proposed development of an executive headquarters in Peapack, Somerset 

County. After the proposed development was approved by the municipality, 

the Divsion of State and Regional Planning sent a letter to the borough 

clerk stating the following: 
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"The Division is also concerned that the applicant's proposal, 

if realized, would conflict with Governor Byrne's urban revitalization goals .... " 

"The Division would recommend that State funds not be utilized 

for this segment of RL 206 .•.. " 

"In the absence of this action we strongly advise the borough 

to reject the proposal as being inconsistent with local plans and the predominant 

characteristics of the borough." 

This letter was written in January of 1979. It was later rescinded. 

But, it proves that this plan was being implemented without the benefit 

of public or legislative hearings. The plan is being used like a gun, held 

at the head of every municipality trying to encourage economic development 

within its's own boundaries. 

The reason that I am here this morning is to say that it is outrageous 

that this State Development Guide Plan has not been submitted to the Legislature. 

It is clear from the in·formation we have received that the plan has already 

influenced the progress of some development projects, even though it is 

just a draft. This cannot be allowed to continue. The Governor and some 

bureaucrats have planned New Jesey's future in a detailed way without so 

much as tipping their hats to the Legislature. 

This House, together with the Senate, is supposed to be the policy­

making body of our State Government. Nothing could be more important with 

regard to public policy than a statewide, comprehensive, development plan 

which directs growth to take place in only some parts of the State. A-

2144 and A-879 gives the Legislature what it should have had when this whole 

State Development Plan process started: the right to review the actions 

of the Executive and approve only those policies which are consistent with 

what the Legislature determines to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of this State. 

I would urge this Committee's serious and thoughtful consideration 

in approving this bill for the entire Legislature to address, and I would 

be glad to answer any questions that you may have, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Mr. Cardinale. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: I have only been down h~re for less than 

a year, but do you think, in your experience, that it is reasonable to limit 

the legislative input into this kind of a sitution to the need to take a 

positive action within a given time frame? It seems to me that things don't 

happen within a given time time frame in my experience, but that is very 

limited. Would you care to comment on that? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GALLO: Well, I am very concerned, Assemblyman Cardinale. 

The State in this action effectively does away with local zoning. Now, 

I have served as a Councilman in Parsippany-Troy Hills, and I have served 

as a Freeholder, and it is important to have those who are closest to that 

problem area, meaning the local government, to be able to determine their 

own destiny. 

I am shocked that the Governor has pursued this avenue. I was 

shocked two years ago when the Governor pursued that avenue and blatantly 

came out with statements that if in fact you did not adhere to the housing 

requirements, and other requi.:ements as outlined in his plan at that time, 

funds would be withheld -- and that was loud and clear. I am concerned 
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with the perception that the citizens are receiving at this stage, and 

also the local officials. The time frame that you are talking about is 

one in which if we do not act and we allow this State Development Guide 

Plan to go into effect-- I have talked to people; some people think it 

is in effect now. I am not sure whether it is or isn't. But, certainly, 

we are allowing them, if we do not act on this, to further erode the prerogatives 

of the Legislature, and I object very strongly to allowing that to happen. 

If there is any legislation that is going to come out, or if there are any 

laws that are going to come out regarding zoninq and things of that nature, 

it should be fully aired, as we are airing it today, and it should be fully 

addressed by the entire Legislature, and not by a handful of individuals 

in Community Affairs, or from the Governor's office, saying they know what 

is right and best for the people of New Jersey. 

I was appauled at the number of hearings that took place without 

our knowledge. There were four or five hearings that took place throughout 

this State, and I never once had any knowledge of those. Frankly, until 

the press questioned me about this, I did not know that they were even having 

hearings on this or that this was a fait accompli and that they were asking 

for comments. So, I think the hearing process certainly was done in a fashion 

that we are not accustaned to. Something of this magnitude should have been 

not only covered by the press, but they should have been informed. The 

media should have brought this out to the public so that they would have 

had an opportunity to question the plan and also offer some of their comments 

as far as revisions were concerned. But, that didn't take place. 

I think if you check the records, Mr. Chairman, and the testimony 

that was given at those meetings, you will find that there were very few 

involved. I don't say that is because the people of this State are apathetic 

to this. I just think they were not aware of what was going on, and if 

they were aware of it, certainly the local officials would have made them­

selves available to that committee system and demonstrated their concerns. 

So, again, I would think there should be renewed hearings on this, and I 

am not sure it should be done through the Community Affairs Department. 

I think your Committee, dealing in this area, is the perfect avenue to address 

the issues that the citizens are concerned with, and the local officials 

are concerned with. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: I would share your view, but I would like 

your opinion relative to the differences in the mechanisms between the two 

bills before us for effecting the legislative oversight. It does seem to 

me initially, on looking at the two proposals, that one proposal sort of 

allows things to take place as long as the Legislature does not act. Given 

the rules of the legislature which make it so difficult sometimes for actions 

and attention, even if one hundred percent of the legislature, or nearly 

that, is interested in something, it doesn't necessarily come to pass. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GALLO: Well, that is the difference that I explained 

before. Assemblyman Hurley's bill is one in which if the legislature does 

not act, it becomes law. My bill would require that it be given to the 

committees by both the Speaker and the Senate President. The committee 

system would have 45 days to review that, and at that time if they so desire 

to have public hearings, and things of that nature, I would think it would 

be up to the Chairman. But, after 45 days, it is then given to the Legislature. 

4 

• 



• 

The legislature has to respond within 15 days. If the legislature does 

not respond in 15 days, the plan dies. So, it takes absolute action by 

the legislative body, and I think that is an important phase and that is 

where Assemblyman Hurley's bill and mine differ. 

But, I feel so strongly about tl:·e legislature being involved in 

this decision because we are talking about probably one of the most important 

decisions that I as a legislator may have to vote on. This affects every 

single citizen in this State. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Assemblyman, the situation that you mentioned 

in Peapack, I believe it was, did the Department call the local officials? 

Did they write to them? How was that--? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GALLO: It was a written letter to them, and then 

it was later recinded. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Oh, they just said they had made a mistake? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GALLO: I don't have a copy of the letter they sent 

back, but they did recind it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: I have no further questions. Thank you very 

much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GALLO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Assemblyman 

Cardinale. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Our next witness will be Mayor Patrick Fiorelli. 

MAY 0 R P AT R I C K F I 0 R E L L I: Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: How are you doing, Mayor? 

MAYOR FIORELLI: I am here not as the Mayor of Vineland; I am 

here as the Chairman of the Legislative Action Committee for the New Jersey 

Conference of Mayors. 

Truthfully, we could say that we support both pieces of legislation 

we are now discussing; although in honesty, I personally thinkthat Assemblyman 

Gallo's bill is the more active bill that we would like to see put into 

play. 

One of the problems that we run into here constantly is the glorious 

thought, passed on to us by the State whenever they want something, of "home 

rule", and whenever they don't want something, they take it away fran us. We 

are beginning to believe that home rule is fiction, that we no longer have 

any control. 

On a local level, I have been one who, for several years now, 

has fought for the separation of Executive and Legislative powers within 

municipal government. I would do so on the State level, except I think 

there are some things in the domain of the legislature. One is the oversight 

the right to have a say over rulings by bureaucracy. 

Somewhere about 15 or 15 years ago, it seems that the wisdom 

of the State bureaucracy has taken over the function of the Legislature. 

They were able to write programs, promulgate them, put them into effect 

by executive order, and if a local mayor goes back to one of his legislators 

to ask about it, the poor fellow knows nothing about it because it was never 

brought before him. 

Assemblyman Gallo referred to four public hearings. Three of 

those public hearings were held prior to public notification, and on the 

day of the fourth hearing, a public notice was put out. If a Mayor were 
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to do that, he would be under some sort of a citation from the Attorney 

General's office for doing such a thing. 

We faced the wisdom of bureaucracy before, and I cite you one 

individual case - and I believe Assemblyman Gallo referred to it - and that 

is the State Housing Plan that was pranulgated a couple of years ago by the 

same Department of Community Affairs, under the direction of Mr. Ginman. 

With all due respect to Mr. Ginman, the City of Vineland at that time was 

notified that it should build anothe~ I believ~ 5,042 low-income homes. 

That was the figure set forth by the State. Truthfully, the Conference 

of Mayors found out about this quite by accident. On the day of our Board 

meeting, I asked for copies of the ruling. We were told there were none 

available, and then miraculously, within about two hours, copies ·appeared. 

The figure of 5,042 homes would have increased the population 

of the City of Vineland by 40% -- all low income, government subsidized 

homes, the surest way to bankrupt the community. We separated the list 

of these homes and sent them to more than 500 mayors in the State, notifying 

them of what their allotment was. We received answers such as, "You are 

crazy; it can't be." In one case, I believe it was in Monmouth ·county, 

the mayor said that if the State proposes to close down the Monmouth County 

race park and give it to us to build homes, we can do it. Another response 

was that we would have to annex the two neighborning townships to have enough 

lots to do that. There was no rhyme nor reason to what was done. It was 

written in an office somewhere and local planners were never contacted. 

The legislature obviously had no say in it, yet we were faced with it. It 
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is still around somewhere. It is still tied up in the courts. • 

These are the sorts of things that we can't afford to face. I 

point out a very good reason why. Of the 567 mayors in this State probably 

530 are part-time mayors, some who receive compensation as low as $500 a 

year. They can't attend all the hearings. Believe me, gentlemen, if you 

could see the stack of notices that come across my desk from Community Affairs 

and DEP, and every other department of the Staate, about public hearings, 

I would be tied up at probably five meetings a day, five days a week, and 

I don't know if any use would come out of even going to testify because 

we have testified at some hearings where it seems to have been of no avail 

whatsoever. 

I believe the Legislature must have some control over this. I 

don't believe it was ever designed by our State Constitution that a bureaucratic 

system could,in effect,write laws - and they are laws; they do carry with 

them penalties and punishments; they do carry the threat of withdrawal of 

money, or the withholding of various funds. So, as far as I am concerned, 

and as far as the mayors of this State are concerned, they are laws, but 

they are laws that never come before the Legislature. 

Now, this isn't meant in any way to be derogatory or threatening, 

but we have an option. As you well know, when members of the General 

Assembly or the Senate run for office, they come to the local level of government, 

to the mayors and governing bodies, for aid in the election. If the Legislature 

passes laws, or rules, detrimental to the municipal governments, we have 

an option: we don't support you; we support the other fellow, and we change 

the Legislature. If bureaucracy promulgates these rules, we have no course 
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of change because no matter who is elected to the leg.'. slat uno, or who the 

Governor is, the bureaucracy remains the same. It is embedded in Civil 

Service, which is good and fine protection. The leadership changes, but 

the basic middle strata of civil servant remains to continue writing these 

rules. In this particular plan were local planners consulted or did they 

just say there is going to be a hearing and you can come? We spend a lot 

of money in the municipalities for planners. The counties spend a lot of 

money for planners, yet with all of our coordination on the local and county 

levels, we seem to keep running into things with the State that have complete 

and total disregard for anything that we have planned. 

We have, in my particular community, monuments to stupidity 

poor planning in the past. We have learned from them. I don't think the 

State had had these. I don't think the State has seen these. I don't think 

they realize that through our mistakes we have learned. I find it very 

difficult to think that someone could, for example, sit in an office in 

Trenton on West State Street and write up a particular order governing something 

that is being built in Cape May, or West Wildwoo~ or Newar~ or Vineland, 

or Trenton for that matter, and know as much about it as the local officials. 

Again, if there were public hearings under the Legislature, we 

could come and present our case- possibly not the 567 mayor of the State­

and through our Association we could tell you what we believe to be right 

and what we believe to be wrong. You would make the final determination, 

but we must have that recourse. I think this is a very critical point. 

As Assemblyman Gallo said, it is a question of whether or not the Legislature 

is being told, in effect, that it is a stepchild, that they can by-pass 

you, that they don't need you. I refer to a particular ruling that came 

through where 5,000 square feet of soil was disturbed: "You must receive 

a permit from the Soil Conservation Division", which was written up by bureaucracy. 

I asked one of our Assemblyman, "Where were the sponsors of this bill? Why 

weren't they at the Rotary Meeting to hear what we thought of it?" He had 

never heard of it. It never came before them. I think that is the danger. 

I refer you to a statment made by a rna~ about government, who 

expounded upon the theory that seems to prevail today in Trenton: that all 

rules of governing must be moved up to the State level because the local 

officials do not have the overall wisdom to govern themselves. Now, that 

is a beautiful theory, except that statement was made in 1934 by the Chancellor 

of Germany, Adolf Hitler. I am not saying that we are getting to that state 

in the State of New Jersey, but I don't think we can afford to gamble. I 

would say we have to have one or the other of these two bills as protection. 

As I said before, I would favor the bill by Assemblyman Gallo, 

because it does provide for activi~y within 45 days, where the other merely 

leaves the question moot if nothing is happening. 

That, gentlemen, is our position. We hope that you will understand 

it and we hope that we can have such legislation to protect us, not from 

ourselves but from higher levels of government. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Doctor Cardinale? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: No questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Excuse me, sir. 

MAYOR FIORELLI: Yes? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: The Conference of Mayors is not part of the 

League of Municipalities, is it? 

MAYOR FIORELLI: No, the League of Municipalities is a separate 

group. 
ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Does the Conferenc~ of Mayors--? 

MAYOR FIORELLI: We total a little over 500. There is another 

association which is working with us lately. I think their opinion is the 

same as ours. 

I serve on the Board of the League of Municipalities and I believe 

their opinion on the Hurley-Galla Bills is similar to what we have expressed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Thank you, Mayor. 

The next witness will be Mr. Donald Epstein of the New Jersey 

Builders Association. 

D 0 N A L D E P S T E I N: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. My name 

is Donald Epstein. I represent the New Jersey Builders Association. I 

am a professional planner, former Chairman of the Plainfield Planning Board, 

Vice President and Chairman of Governmental Affairs, Central Jersey Chamber 

of Commerce, and the General Environmental Chairman of the New Jersey Builders 

Association. Also, I am a life director and former Regional Vice President 

of the New Jersey Builders Association. 

Let me begin by indicating that the New Jersey Builders Association 

favors Assembly Bill 879 and Assembly Bill 2144. After hearing the speakers 

we had this morning, we give preference to the Gallo Bill, No. 2144, and 

urge your release of these bills from this Committee. 

We have carefully reviewed this plan and will highlight some of 

the concerns today which we hope will show the need for full legislative 

consideration. We intend to prepare comments to the DCA regarding the shortfalls 

we feel exist in this plan, and to properly register our Associations' concerns. 

We are, however, deeply concerned that this plan is being implemented without 

broad input from legislators, nor do we feel that adequate consideration 

has been given to the concerns expressed by representatives of industry 

and the citizens of New Jersey. 

Although we do consider many of the goals proposed by the architects 

of this plan to be laudable, and also agree that New Jersey must plan for 

sensible growth in the future, we do not believe this proposal has received 

the consideration and review necessary for a plan of this scope. 

Any land use policy adopted will have broad social and economic 

repercussions for the citizens of New Jersey and this State as a whole. 

We believe that these factors, while acknowledged as necessary considerations, 

are secondary to the thrust of this plan. For this reason, we ask you, 

as elected officials responsible to the citizenry of New Jersey, to carefully 

review this plan. After careful consideration of its design and implications, 

you should sanction a plan which is consistent with your knowledge of what 

is in the best interest of New Jersey. 

There are cases already where this plan has been used to restrict 

development and contained in the text of this plan it admits that "since 

1977 the Division of Planning has used the State Development Guide Plan 

as a reference", and also states that "Some agencies have found the plan 

useful and have incorporated its major recommendations within their own 
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programs." 

Beyond the reality of DCA's use of the 1977 draft plan, as stated, 

the Department has also utilized this plan as a justification to stop federal 

funding assistance all, we remind you, without even having the legislature 

review this document. This has occurred, for example, with the Gloucester 

Count MUA when applying for an expansion. The Department of Community Affairs 

stepped in and told Gloucester County they could not apply for the expansion 

proposed, and diminished the federal assistance to the level that DCJI. felt 

was appropriate and consistent with their plan. 

All of this has taken place without benefit of public hearings, 

nor consideration by the duly elected representative of the people of this 

State who must go back to their constituents and explain, for example, why 

affordable housing in New Jersey is becoming obsolete. They must explain 

that the land available to develop, because of the restraints imposed upon 

it by this plan, will cause land costs to skyrocket, putting the price of 

a new home out of the reach of not just middle-income families in our State, 

but all families except those with the highest earnings. This, coupled 

with the increase in costs necessitated by government agency regulation, 

will make the "American dream" of homeownership New Jerseyites' impossible 

dream in the future. 

There is evidence today that fifteen to twenty percent of the 

cost of a new home is attributed to excessive regulations. The implementation 

of this plan will significantly increase this figure further. Upon review 

of this plan, we understand that the proposed area for growth is in the 

urban corridors, and future plans for major investments will be concentrated 

in this area. Although we agree that revitalizing our cities is important 

and we encourage this concept, we wonder, at whose expense? This plan almost 

certainly takes away the right of the consumer to determine where they choose 

to live. I suppose the creators of this plan believe that if the cities 

are the only place to find housing, people will flock there. I believe 

this assumption to be terribly short-sighted. The plan might succeed in 

forcing growth out of the suburbs, but it might force growth to Texas, 

or some other state. 

It is also reasonable to expect that the State will tell IBM, 

General Electric, or Sony to build in Newark or else forget building in 

New Jersey. While the State can stop development, it cannot force it to 

occur. People can and will just as easily move out of the State. 
This plan only addresses the commitment on the part of the State 

to upgrade and expand facilities,· such as transportation and sewers, in the 

cities, in order to best utilize limited capital resources. This plan does 

not address the major social ills which have heavily contributed to the 

migration from the cities in the first place. 

What about the schools, crime, and high taxes which have always 

been the major deterrents to city living? Or, do the proponents of this 

plan expect everyone to move in and then face these issues? People have 

moved from the cities to the suburbs giving up the luxury of modern sewers 

in exchange for septic tanks, waving goodbye to mass transportation, and 

taking on the additional financial responsibility of another car and added 

fuel expenses in order to maintain a sense of wellbeing, and exercise their 
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right to decide where they will live. It is doubtful that upgraded and 

expanded sewers and transportation centers will become an incentive for 

moving into the cities. 

The plan itself states that high tax rates, high insurance costs, 

and frequent lack of mortgage financing have contributed significantly to 

the cities' decline. How does this plan lower taxes and insurance premiums, 

or make available more mortgage money? Does the State propose to tell the 

insurance companies to lower their rates in the cities, or don't do business 

there? Does the State intend to tell the banks how and where to conduct 

business, or does the State plan to get into the insurance business in order 

to make these incentives available so this plan has some chance for success? 

All successful businesses realize there must be evidence of a 

market for a product before investing large sums of money. Housing as a 

product is no different. Builders would not be building single-family units 

in the suburbs if there was not an overwhelming demand for such housing. 

Obviously, a builder, as a practical businessman, would be reluctant to 

invest his money in urban construction without evidence of such demand. 

The Bureaucracy has determined that people should live in the cities, and 

that little opportunity for other development should exist, therefore forcing 

such a philosophy. This decision by the bureaucracy will not create a demand 

for that which does not exist yet. 

To our knowledge, only 30% of New Jersey is presently developed. 

The Pinelands encompasses an additional 23%. This leaves approximately 

47% of the State available for growth. However, it must be noted that within 

this 47%, a considerable portion is already drastically limited for growth 

through the implementation of other land management plans already in place, 

such as: Wetlands, Floodplains, Farmlands, CAPRA, and others as well. Also 

contained within this 47% are large areas that are undevelopable. As you 

can see, we are already talking about limited growth potential without the 

implementation of this plan. 

Each time we adopt a non-growth policy, the cost of the remaining 

land increases drastically, an increase directly attributed to government 

policies. 

The plan expresses the desire to reduce duplication of facilities 

and proposes to commit state capital where it meets the need, while at the 

same time this plan disregards the vast sums of capital investment already 

expended. 

For instance, the plan defines much of Sussex and Morris counties 

as limited growth areas. A substantial capital investment has already been 

invested in such major arteries as Routes 8, 287, 15, 23, and 46. This 

investment was made based on the premise that this area had high potential. 

Do we now abandon this theory and investments and restrict growth here, 

leaving these arteries under-utilized, wasting large sums of money already 

expended and now put additional capital into urban corridors based on yet 

another theory that this area has high growth potential? I must also note 

that the Sussex and Morris area is producing some of the most affordable 

housing in Northern New Jersey, and can accommodate, nicely, future development 

without detriment to the general welfare of the State, while at the same 

time insuring a return on the capital investments already made. 
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We further believe that this plan will not readily cut down on 

the duplication of services and State investments. We believe that many 

citizens will continue moving to the suburbs and will require sewers and 

roads. We do believe, however, that these homeowners and taxpayers will 

foot the bill for this plan and pay for services. They will be paying property 

taxes for needed services and a State tax which will be paying for the services 

required to revitalize the cities as well as those they personally require. 

This plan also attempts to protect existing farmland from development, 

assuming that the State knows best what is good for owners of farmland. 

Is it really fair to tie the farmer to his farm? Is it not his choice to 

decide what to do with his property? Many of New Jersey's farm areas are 

in a state of decline. Many of our farmers cannot compete with the more 

efficient farms elsewhere. Some farmers are just not in the position to, nor do tht!y 

have the desire to continue farming. We believe they should also continue 

to have the right to determine what is best for them. 

The points I have briefly mentioned highlight only a few of the 

foreseeable problems if this plan is adopted. But, the most outstanding 

and glaring fault we find with this plan is the absence of legislative oversight. 

The scope and long-term economic impact of this plan demands thorough review 

by the Legislature, who is responsible to the public, the people who elected 

them to guide and direct the future of New Jersey, people whose lives will 

be greatly affected by any repercussions a plan of this magnitude presents. 

The plan itself calls for legislation to implement many of the 

policies it contains and assumes the Legislature will champion laws necessary 

to implement this plan, a plan crafted, proposed, and adopted without legislative 

sanctions. 

Th~ Legislature has always acted in the best interest of the public 

and has dealt responsibly with the public concerns for preservation of natural 

areas by providing the Coastal Area Facility Review Act, the Wetlands Act, 

the Floodplains Act, and the Pinelands Act, to name only a few, thereby 

granting authority to agencies to administer and regulate necessary policy. 

Why then are the architects of this plan opposed to legislative oversight 

if they are acting responsibly in addressing the future needs of New Jersey? 

We urge you to release these bill from your Committee, and further 

call upon you to encourage prompt consideration by the entire Legislature 

in order to, once and for all, understand what the future of New Jersey 

will be. Again, gentlemen, our preference is for Assembly Bill 2144. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: All right. Doctor, do you have any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Do you see any need for any state plan, 

aside from the question of legislative oversight? Let's say the Legislature 

came up with a plan that was similar to this plan. Do you feel there is 

any validity to the State having an overall guide plan? 

MR. EPSTEIN: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: I have one question. Throughout your presentation 

you talk about people wanting to live where they choose. What would you say 

to the argument that the people who are poor don't have the right to live 

where they would like to because, for example, Vineland doesn't want any 

low-income housing, so we have forced low income people all into certain 

areas of our State, people who don't have the right to live in the "nicer" 

11 



areas because they can't afford housing in those areas since the towns don't 

allow for low income housing ? 

MR. EPSTEIN: I liken that very much to the upward mQ.bility of 

some small companies that cannot affort the very fanc;t high-rise office 

buildings, but will start in a second-class type of structure and eventually. 

will be able to work themselves up in some cases and acquire better quarters. 

The government does provide rental assistance, and does have rental assistance 

programs, and we are in favor of having support for people that need housing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: No, you are confusing where they live as opposed 

to other things. 

MR. EPSTEIN: I don't like to see anybody tell people where they 

should live. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Well, when we have zoning, that does that; we 

are doing that, aren't we? You know, I can't afford to buy an acre o.f two 

of land in some of our municipalities and I am forced to live only where 

I can afford it, because I can't afford to live in their town due to 

their restrictions. 

MR. EPSTEIN: I think towns should be able to have some say over 

zoning and lot size, and so forth. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: That seems to be in contradiction with what 

you say about people being able to live where they want to. That is obviously 

not true in many, many areas of our State. 

Affairs. 

J A M E S 

Okay, thank you very much. 

Mr. James Sinclair, Deputy Commissioner of the Department of Community 

S I N C L A I R: Good morning. I am Jim Sinclair. This is 

Dick Ginman, who is the Director of the State Division of Planning. 

I would like to make a brief statement opposing these bills, represent­

ing the Department and the Administration. 

Today we are here to consider two bills, Assembly Bill No. 879, 

and Assembly Bill No. 2144, which require the State Guide Plan to be submitted 

to the Legislature for approval before becoming effective. The State Guide 

Plan is a comprehensive State Planning document intended to provide a general 

framework for State and Federal investment decisions and local land use 

policies. It is not a statewide zoning ordinance, nor is it intended to 

be so. 

While it is not of a mandatory nature, it would promote orderly 

growth by providing an overall perspective for local land use decisions. 

The Leislature, recognizing the need for such overall State guide, authorized 

the Executive Branch to develop a State Guide Plan in the 1961 enabling 

act. The need for orderly, balanced growth and development prompted the 

Legislature to delegate this planning authority to the Executive Branch 

in a manner which was both efficient and constitutionally correct. These 

bills, if enacted, would undermine both the promise of efficiency and constitu­

tionality. 

The purpose of these bills is to extend the power of the Legislature, 

in addition to its current responsibilities, to manage as well as legislate 

land use development. In order to appreciate that historically this has 

been an Executive function, it may be useful to review the history of 
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comprehensive planning in New Jersey. 

During Governor Hughes' Administration, the State was experiencing 

a growth boom, and, as a consequence, local plans and zoning ordinances 

were prepared to handle the onslaught. Public policy-makers were concerned 

with the ability of the public sector to 'eep pace with projected growth, 

and"urban sprawl" became a national concern. As a result, Governor Hughes 

convened an interdepartmental committee of State agency representatives 

to advise the Division on the preparation of the plan. 

The committee examined local land use plans and discovered a projected 

statewide population of 20 million which would be distributed in a crazy-

quilt pattern throughout the State, a pattern which would threaten both 

our natural resources and the public services needed to support such a wide­

spread distribution of population. 

In response to this situation, an executive plan was created known 

as the "Horizon Plan" which dealt with the intensity of urbanization, open 

space, agriculture, and transportation. The Horizon Plan recommended ways 

to accommodate that growth while also protecting basic resources needed 

to support growth. 

The Horizon Plan was widely discussed'with the public and considerable 

support was expressed. However, the plan was regarded as too long-range 

to assist the capital program decisions that State and local agencies had 

to make. Formulation of an intermediate plan was deferred when efforts 

had to be directed to the urban unrest of the late '60's and early '70's. 

In 1972 Governor Cahill established a State Planning Task Force, 

consisting of three citizens and ten cabinet officers, charged with assuring 

that the development of the State and its resources be relaized in an orderly 

manner. Hearings were held and testimony taken, leading to the inescapable 

conclusion that some form of State planning strategy was needed, and that 

a formal body to review and adopt such a plan should be instituted. Several 

forms and structures were analyzed and. recommendations were made to Governor 

Cahill, but no action was taken in the remaining months of this administration. 

Governor Byrne was presented with the Cahill Task Force Report. 

He authorized the preparation of a new plan, the creation of the Governor's 

Office of Policy and Planning, and the structuring of the Cabinet Committee 

on Development Policy and Projects. 

The first draft of the new plan entitled, "The State Development 

Guide Plan," was released in September, 1977. During the development of 

the plan and prior to release, the recommendations were thoroughly discussed 

at both the county and State agency planning levels. Thereafter, many meetings 

and presentations were held for the public and specific interest groups. 

A second draft was prepared reflecting the comments received during that 

lengthy discussion period. That draft was discussed thoroughly with the 

Governor's Office of Policy and Planning and the Cabinet Committee on Development 

Policy and Projects prior to its public release in May of 1980. Since its 

release, numerous comments have been received directly through public hearings 

and through presentation before groups. 

The plan's purpose is to provide a framework for making State 

decisions about investments of State and Federal dollars that influence 

land development. it is not a State zoning envelope, although many have 
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suggested it should be. It is a management tool to facilitate the coordination 

and evaluation of functional plans and investment alternatives for which 

the Executive Branch is responsible. 

While the plan's primary use is directed inward to State agencies, 

there is no denying it can be helpful in shaping local and county objectives. 

The Legislature has specifically required in its Local Land Use Law that 

the State plan be considered when local master plans are developed. For 

this reason, county planning agencies were initially solicited prior to 

the first draft in 1977 and consulted with each revision. 

Consistency between State plans and county and regional plans 

has been pursued by the Division of Planning to the extent possible prior 

to formal adoption. In the nine northeastern New Jersey counties - Hudson, 

Bergen, Essex, Union, Passaic, Morris, Somerset, Middlesex, and Monmouth -

a formal process of three-way plan comparison was undertaken among each 

county, tri-State and State. Basic Agreement among most aspects of the 

plan was achieved in numerous discussions of both general policy and map 

designations. While formal agreements were struck between each county and 

tri-State, similar agreements, although possible between each county and 

the State, were delayed until the State plan acquires formal status. In 

the four counties of the Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission -

Mercer, Burlington, Camden, and Gloucester - a slightly different approach 

was used since each county is a participating member of the Regional Agency. 

As a voting member, each participant approved the DVRPC Plan signifying 

agreement with the county plans. The State Plan was judged to be essentially 

consistent with the formally adopted DVRPC Plan for areas outside the Pinelands 

Protection Area. 

For the remainder of South Jersey, the State Plan recognizes the 

two districts established in the Pinelands Protection Act, and the districts 

described in the plan prepared by the Department of Environmental Protection, 

pursuant to the Coastal Area Facilities Review Act. As specific plans emerge 

from the Pinelands Commission, they would be incorporated into the State 

Plan. 

In Hunterdon, Warren, and Sussex Counties, plan coordination discussions 

are underway. On Thursday of this week, we will be meeting again with Sussex 

County. 

What the foregoing discussion indicates is that the Guide Plan 

is the product of synthesizing numerous functional plans and policies - relating 

to water supply and quality, transportation, open space, housing, air quality, 

economic development, wetlands, aqriculture, coastal resources, and others 

to one another and to long-range goals which are supported by various acts 

of the Legislature and the Federal Congress. Such plans and policies are 

not new; what is new is the process of considering each of these not in 

isolation but as components of coordinated governmental actions which influence 

the long-term development of New Jersey. 

A planning document, such as this one, is meant to be a guide 

which can be changed as projections and growth factors change. A legislatively 

approved plan would inhibit such flexibility and tend to freeze planning 

development for extended periods or time. 

These extensive efforts to coordinate plans are increasing the 

harmony of development policy. This has resulted in a planning process 
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that evolved over nearly twenty years and has a clear record of interaction 

with the principal policymakers. 

Opportunities to review and provide direct comments on the development 

of the plan have been extended to each member of the Legislature on both 

the 1977 and 1980 drafts. Furthermore, h ::rislators have had the opportunity 

to discuss the !Jla!l in public forums with both the opponents and proponents 

and the Division. Our records show that some of the legislators have availed 

themselves of this opportunity. Ample time and opportunity remain for legilators 

to review the substantial progress made to date and offer their recommendations. 

Watching over the process of planning carries with it a heavy 

responsibility to contribute to the resolution of differences - a process 

that really never ends. I urge you to reconsider the approach outlined 

in the bills and to join with us and the hundreds of contributers who hope 

to make this a truly significant planning process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Thank you, IVr. Sinclair. Dr. Ca;~dinale, do 

you have any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Why do you object to legislative oversight? 

MR. SINCLAIR: I think there is a constitutional issue that I, since 

I am not an attorney, cannot address, but I believe that there is a constitutional 

issue that doesn't allow it. In the normal legislative process, the Governor 

participates in the process with the power of veto. This, in fact, is turning 

it around. I think there have been some court cases in Connecticut and Alaska 

that would seem to bear this out. But, as I said I am not an attorney. That's 

the Administration's position, and that has been fairly consistent, that the 

Governor and the Administration object to it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Is this guide used by other agencies of 

State government in order to make decisions that will affect things like local 

sewer authority bonds, and things like a plan for development that is proposed 

before a county, be that private or public development? 

MR. SINCLAIR: The guide plan itself is a framework for decision­

making. Whether it affects the issuance of a sewer authority bond or not, 

I don't believe that is the case, although it may affect a decision-making 

process within the government in terms of allocation of resources - say the 

bond funds under the Clean Water Act, or something like that. 

The plan itself is an articulation of State policy, a policy that 

exists without the plan. The policy still exists, except it isn't there for 

people to examine. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Let me rephrase that question a little bit. 

Some prior testimony by some officials has indicated that there is a certain 

degree of uncertainty among public officials as to what the real effect of 

this document is. Is it just some sort of advisory opinion or is it something 

which has the effect of law? It didn't appear at the hearing today, and I 

don't know whether there is a future witness who will talk about it, but the 

Gloucester County Sewer Authority - and I am not sure that I am giving you 

the right name, but that is the agency that is involved - the Executive Director 

of that group has spoken before various members of the Legislature and has 

indicated that this guide plan has been used, sort of at the last minute, to 

change the methodology that was used to finance the expansion of that sewer 

plant, and has changed it to the extent that they have gone, at that point 
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in time, to private financing rather than to other forms of financing which 

would have been available to them. This is because at the last moment, after 

all of the environmental, etc. conditions had been met by both the State and 

Federal governments, and the local government, this plan was used by someone 

in the Department of Environmental Protection to void the prior approvals 

that had been given to that bond issue. 

MR. SINCLAIR: I am not familiar with that case. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Specifically, or in general, what is the 

status of that? 

MR. SINCLAIR: Okay. Maybe Mr. Ginman knows this case. 

MR. GINMAN: Specifically with regard to the Gloucester County MUA, 

there is some misinformation about that particular assessment. The Department 

of Environmental Protection is required by law, through the Federal program 

that they administer, and that relates generally to the 208 Water Quality 

Planning Program that they administer, to assess the effects of the land use 

as well as the flow of the sewerage and so on. In doing so, they asked the 

Gloucester County MUA for a clear statement as to what lands would be affected 

by the extention of the lines. The Gloucester County MUA consistantly refused 

to provide that information and, in fact, no comparison could ever be made 

since the MUA literally refused to cooperate with the process of a land use 

concern going along with a sewer provision concern. I think there is a certain 

reality that if you build sewer lines, you can expect that land will be developed. 

What was being asked of the Gloucester County MUA was that they 

provide the information of what they expected to develop over a certain period 

of time. They argued that they weren't empowered to control land use, therefore 

they could not tell the Department of Environmental Protection. That became 

the axis of the argument. It was not an argument as to whether the State's 

plan was different from a local plan, or whatever. That was really what the 

argument was about the refusal to get involved in the process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Where they actually asked, in relation to 

this plan, to guarantee that no growth would take place, which was not consonant 

with the standard set up in this plan? 

MR. GINMAN: They were asked to provide information regarding certain 

parts of that county which certainly did extend into the Pinelands and other 

areas, as to what its effect would be on land use. Certainly, our plan reflects 

the concerns of the Pinelands; it reflects the concerns of the Delaware Valley 

Regional Planning Commission who had adopted a plan along with Gloucester 

County as to the extent of land development in the area, and we were reflecting 

the same concerns, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: So, yes is your answer. Okay. 

When you were evaluating the various alternatives, which I am sure 

must have been before you as you were making selections of what was going to 

go into the plan, did you have various alternatives, and did you make selections? 

MR. GINMAN: From the beginning of the planning process that Mr. 

Sinclair described to you, back in 1961, alternative development schemes have 

been considered, and that process had gone on even on a less formal basis 

during the Cahill administration. I think alternatives have always been considered 

in the planning process, but in reality when you start to work fairly closely 

with the county level of government, you are not really presented with a wide 

range of alternatives. Some of th2 opportunities are closed off to you and 
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you have to become more realistic as to what is literally possible within 

the financing structure of the county, within the financing structure of the 

community, and the State government. It tends to boil down to very few options. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: You see, the presentation carries with it 

a very clear implication that there was a ~reat deal of consultation with 

the planning groups. 

MR. GINMAN: That's correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: (continuing) And - perhaps I am reading too much into 

what was said - but that you considered their wishes and therefore did not 

have any need to go down below to the municipalities, and so forth. In these 

choices that were made, were these essentially the choices that were made 

by the various counties, or were these choices where you just listened to 

what the county had to say and then chose your own plan? 

MR. GINMAN: In each one of the counties, all of the 21 counties 

of the State, there are various levels of planning activities. Some counties 

have a fairly large staff; some are very small in staff. Some rely to a great 

degree on municipal plans, and some provide a great degree of coordination 

and oversight at the county level. We tried to work within whatever structure 

seemed to be prevalent in whatever county and took advantage of what actually 

had been occuring at that time. To the extent that those policies could be 

considered consistent with overall state policy, I am not prepared to say 

that in every county and in every possible location that complete harmony 

exists at this time. There are still differences of opinion, and we believe 

that those are differences that can be worked out over a period of time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: An earlier speaker made the statement that 

you have had four hearings, or so, in relation to this plan, and that three 

of those hearings were held prior to the notices of those hearingsbeinq made 

available to local officials, is that correct or it is incorrect? I have 

no way of knowing. 

MR. GINMAN: Well, I don't believe that is the case. Certainly, 

I can't speak for the U.S. Mails. We have heard of some real horror stories, 

but certainly ample time was provided ~n sending out the information prior 

to that. I should also caution that in no way are we constrained to any public 

hearings. Included in the documentation presented to you as an appendix is 

a list of the pertinent meetings that we have held and presentations that 

we have held since the beginning of this process in 1976. This is not an 

end process. What we are trying to demonstrate is that this is a continuing 

process of constantly listening to peoples' concerns, whether they be by tele­

phone, whether they be by letter, whether they make a personal appearance, or 

\k.ether we are invited to an organization to make our case and listen to their 

concerns, we believe all of these are viable means of communication and I 

would not want to limit myself or limit communities or limit anyone else to 

any standard foremat, although we try to provide as many wide and various 

foremats as possible. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: In answer to my first question, you indicated 

that essentially it is a technical problem of constitutionality that leads 

you to oppose legislative oversight. Would you, as members of the administration, 

support a change in that technical requirement so that we could change the 

constitution to have legislative oversight, or some oversight by some elected 
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officials on things that are done by agencies such as yours, when they affect 

large numbers of people. 

MR. SINCLAIR: I guess the fundamental issue here is that in effect 

the Legislature, as I understand the process, is constantly looking at what 

the administration is doing. I mean that is the function of the legislature, 

to change the laws and to review. Oversight is conptant and on-going. But, 

when-- I guess I won't speak for the administration, but I will speak for 

myself personally. When oversight becomes a tool for doing nothing, or for 

preventing what should go on from going on, then I have an objection to that. 

But, as Dick said, in this particular case, this is not an end product. It 

is not a regultory device. It is an announced policy that changes as time 

changes and as administrations change. But, at least having it out there 

is a framework for discussions, it is a framework for arguing about things 

you know, peoples' concerns. And, instead of having decisions made in some 

sort of haphazard way or by some mysterious system, it is a framework which 

an administration can be judged by -- how it allocates its resources. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: You qave an answer to Assemblyman Cardinale's 

question about what should be done. I would think the problem is that what 

you think should be done and what maybe I think or what Assanblyman Cardinale thinks 

may be different. The other difference is that we were elected to do what 

we think is right; whereas, you were only appointed. I think that is part 

of the problem, that people are implementing policy who were not elected by 

anyone, and who really aren't responsive to people because they are not up 

for election. 

MR. SINCLAIR: I understand that. I work for the Governor, who 

is elected, and ultimately everybody that works for the Governor is responsible 

to him and he to the electorate. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Well, we can get into a long discussion on that 

but I don't want to. 

In your statement you mentioned clear record of interaction with 

principal policy-makers. Who are those? 

MR. SiNCLAIR: We have a listing in the appendix. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Off the top of your head. 

MR. GINMAN: Certainly, all of the counties that are involved in 

· the process of planning and in some cases those extend to Freeholders as well 

as County Planning Board members. It varies from county to county. There 

is a record of having met with all of the State agencies involved in that 

process. In many cases, municipalities come forward and have particular 

problems and concerns that they would like to have addressed. As I said, 

certain legislators have taken the opportunity to discuss their problems with 

us. We have gone over that with them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: I am glad that you mentioned that. I note you 

changed a word in your presentation from, "Our records show that three legislators 

availed themselves of this opportunity" to "Our records show that some •••• " 

Why did you change that? 

MR. GINMAN: It could be more than three. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: It seemed like it was a zinger, which you later 

on modified. 

MR. GINMAN: Unfortunately, not a lot of legislators took advantage 

of the opportunity. It would be perhaps inaccurate to limit it to only three. 



There may have been four or five or six. It was not a lot. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: I don't know how much you know nbout the job 

that I have, but to think that we have time, to realize what is going on 

in every department is absolutely ridiculous, to think, you know, that if 

you send me some form letter in the mail nb:mt some regional plan that I am 

going to respond right awayis ridiculous. I think both of you gentlemen 

know that. I think that if two of you come to the proper committee and say, 

"Here is our plan. This is our jurisdiction. Let's sit down and go over 

it," well, then, that is a different ball game-- okay? I don't think that 

sending a form letter to every legislator is really doing the job. You are 

not going to get any response from that until such a time as our constituents 

say, "Hey, they are doing this and it affects us." If we don't know anything 

about it, that's when we call. But, I don't see anywhere where you have 

come forth to the Legislature - maybe you have gone to the Governor -

and said, "Here is our plan. What do you think? This has far-reaching implications." 

So, I don't accept that ample opportunity for legislators for review. That 

is nonsense. That is absolute nonsense. I had never heard of this plan. 

I had no idea about it until I was approached about the bills in my committee. 

So, review by the Legislature is absolutely non-existent. That is why we 

are here today. Maybe this could have been avoided by you coming to the committee 

and just having a sit-down discussion regarding this whole plan. 

MR. SINCLAIR: We are certainly amenable to that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: You are amendable afterwards though. You know, 

you are not amenable before. You know, you would just rather, at times, forget 

us until somebody gets on your back. 

Thank you, gentlemen. 

Our next witness is James Moreford of the Society for Environmental 

Economic Development. 

J A M E S M 0 R E F 0 R D: Chairman Codey, Assemblyman Cardinale, I'm 

James Moreford, Executive Director of the New Jersey Society for Environmental Eco~c 

Development. New Jersey SEEDis a coaltion of organizations concerned with 

the promotion of responsible economic growth and development. Our membership 

is drawn from throughout the business, industry, labor spectrum, including 

the New Jersey State AFL-CIO, and the New Jersey State Chamber of Commerce. 

We thank you for conducting this public hearing on two very important 

bills, A-879, and A-2144. SEED has been a leading advocate of proposals to 

provide meaningful legislative oversight, the need for which is dramatically 

demonstrated by the proposed State Development Guide plan, upon which the 

bills under consideration here today would have a profound impact. 

Mr. Chairman, we urge you to favorably consider and report A-879 

and A-2144, or a committee substicute combining both proposals. 

The proposed State Development Guide Plan is such a dramatic policy­

setting document that it simply must have the active participation of the 

Legislature. It must not be allowed to happen simply by administrative fiat. 

Passage of A-879 or A-2144 will permit the Legislature to determine 

if the State of New Jersey should adopt an urban development strategy that 

would virtually shut off development in the suburbs. While a policy that 

stresses redevelopment and maintenance of the inner cities may have merit, 

the issue has such far-reacing implications for the economic future of New 
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Jersey that the Legislature simply must be a party to the adoption of such 

a policy. 

Approval of A-879 and/or A-2144 will provide the Legislature an 

opportunity to determine if the proposed State Development Guide Plan goes 

beyond the intent of the Legislature and the authority it granted to the Division 

of State and Regional Planning. The Legislature should determine if a State 

Development Guide Plan that incorporates the map that imposes certain land 

use programs that are not established anywhere in the law, goes too far. The 

Legislature should determine if the State of New Jersey should, as the plan 

states, control and restrict development, limit road improvements and highway 

construction, discourage residential development, avoid extensive clearing 

of forest areas, maintain buffers, banks, steep slopes, etc., etc. 

Approval of A-879 and/or A-2144 will permit the Legislature to consider, 

and we hope reject, the proposal that New Jersey needs a state zoning plan 

to diminish economic opportunities and ratables in other than urban areas. 

While not promoted as such, it will have the effect of requiring and mandating 

rather than guiding. 

Mr. Chairman, traditionally the private sector, business, industry, 

and home-seekers, have created the pattern and the direction of growth. Builders 

and developers simply respond. Businesses locate motivated by market forces 

peculiar to them. The public government sector, roads, transporation, energy, 

utilities, schools, etc .. , provide the needed services and utilities. The 

better these two sectors work together to plan and anticipate, the easier 

it is for the government to provide those services. The essential point is 

that the private sector is free to respond to the consumer, and the government 

sector follows with needed services. That has been the traditional way in 

America and in New Jersey, a system based upon free market principles. 

SEED respectfully requests, Mr. Chairman, that this Committee convey 

to the Commissioner of the Department of Community Affaris that it is the 

intention of this Committee to move this legislation, therefore urging the 

Department to delay adoption of the proposed State Development Guide Plan 

until the Legislature had has a reasonable period of time to address this 

issue through consideration of A-879 and/or A-2144. 

Mr. Chairman, with your indulgence may I change hats and make just 

a very brief comment on behalf of the New Jersey State Chamber of Commerce, 

for which I am Director of Governmental Relations? The State Chamber also 

urges you to support the bills before you today. We have serious problems 

with the proposed State Development Guide Plan. New Jersey's cities are simply 

not capable of accommodating the new development which the proposed plan would 

seek to force. 

Furthermore, companies which cannot locate facilities where they 

feel their economic interests warrant will simply locate in other states. 

The State Chamber believes A-879 and A-2144 are proposals that make 

very good sense. We would suggest, however, that the Legislature amend them 

to include a provision that the guide plan have the approval of the Commission 

on Capital Planning and Budgeting. 

Secondly, the State Chamber would suggest that the legislation should 

allow the Legislature ninety to one hundred and twenty days to act, rather 

than the sixty days currently provided in the bill, or at least in A-2144, 
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because we feel it is just not enough time. 

Third, we would ask that A-2144 be amended to requre a public hearing, 

conducted jointly by the st.anding reference committees. 

Finally, Mr. Chairman, we urge that the Committee act favorably 

on these proposals with all deliberate spc~d. Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: I just have one or two questions, if I may, 

Mr. Chairman. There have been some hearings by the Department relative to 

this plan. Was your organization notified of those and did you attend? 

MR. MOREFORD: We had notification of the hearings. We were not 

able to study the Guide Pla~ which had come out just briefly before, and make 

the kind of responses required at a public hearing. Currently, both organizations 

have in preparation written statements to go to the Department of Community 

Affairs before the middle of this month. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: I think this Committee would like to have 

copies of those presentations. 

MR. MOREFORD: You surely will have them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Thank you, Mr. Moreford. 

Our next witness will be Paul McConnell. 

p A U L MC C 0 N N E L L: Mr. Chairman, Assemblyman Cardinale, my name 

is Paul McConnell, and I represent the New Jersey Asphalt Pavement Association. 

Today in the absence of Mr. William J. Abbott, their Executive Director who 

was not able to be present, I want to thank you for the opportunity of being 

here and present just a brief statement as to the position of the Association, 

and others, with regard to this pending legislation. 

It is encouraging that the New Jersey State Assembly has responded 

to the concern of many citizens regarding the far-reaching effects that the 

imposition of the State Development Guide Plan will have on the future economic 

growth of the State. 

In particular, we support the concept of Legislative oversight of 

administrative plans that ignore the wisdom of local planning and development, 

imposing instead State "super agencies" that literally control the destiny 

of our citizens. 

The limited growth areas, along with Pineland, Green Acres, Wetlands, 

Flood Plains, CAPRA, and the intended agricultural preservation areas, combine 

to place under State administrative control just about 70% of New Jersey. 

We support the concept of preserving certain pristine areas of the 

State for the present and future enjoyment of all our citizens, but 70% of 

the State under control by Trenton is an ambitious concept that goes well 

beyond preservation of pristine areas. 

In truth, the plan ha0 no place in a free society that cherishes 

"home rule" and relies on the judgment of those dedicated individuals who 

volunteer the{r time to serve on County and Municipal Planning Boards. 

In an arrogant sort of way, the plan questions the intelligence 

or Lhc p<~sL ;mel would havt• us bvlievc' thai the !)(•st judgment for th(' futur(' 

will eminate from the Department of Community Affairs, and other designated 

State departments. 

We do not buy the idea, nor do we think the citizens of New Jersey 

would buy that idea, nor do we think they would even accept the plan if it 
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went to referendum in November, and possibly the referendum would be in the 

best democratic tradition for such a broad based plan. 

We urge you to consider seriously and act upon this legislation, 

and we advise you also, with pleasure, that concurring with this statement 

is the New Jersey Alliance for Action, and also the Southern New Jersey Develop­

ment Council. This statement is signed by New Jersey Asphalt Pavement Association, 

William J. Abbott, Executive Director. Thank you, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Thank you, sir. 

Our next witness will be Herman Simonse. 

HERMAN S I M 0 N S E: Thank you. I'm Herman Simonse, and I am here 

today speaking as President of the Northern New Jersey Chapter of the National 

Association of Industrial and Office Parks. This Association represents 

approximately one hundred of the major developers and builders throughout 

New Jersey. The members of this Association are responsible for private invest­

ment of hundreds of millions of dollars annually, and the creation of thousands 

of private jobs annually. 

We support the basic concepts of both A-879 amd A-2144, and we specifically 

support both of these bills as they relate to the State Development Guide 

Plan. 

I will not take the time this afternoon to repeat the many arguments 

that we have heard in opposition to the State Development Guide Plan, and 

in support of the two bills that we are discussing. It would be redundant, 

and there are others~ers who have specific questions that they would like 

to ask. 

OUr Association feels that this is just another land use, anti-development, 

negative private~capital-investment piece of legislation, or should be a piece 

of legislation, but really is nothing more than a document which should not 

be approved without legislative review and approval. 

It is, without question, the most sweeping and all encompassing document 

that has yet been considered by the State of New Jersey. 

Other people have mentioned this, and I would just like to repeat 

that the members of the Legislature- you members of the Assembly that are 

sitting here today -are the ones that represent us. You must answer to us 

for your actions. This is not true with the members of the cabinet, and their 

various appointed division and bureau heads. So, we feel strongly that both 

of these bills should be released and should be approved. We also feel very 

strongly that the State Development Guide Plan should have the full scrutiny 

of the entire legislature. 

I can only conclude by wondering aloud, after listening to the Department 

of Community Affairs presentation, why this document, why this wonderful, 

wonderful document that has taken twenty years to come about - we were told 

it had its genesis in 1961 - if it is to do all these good things for the 

State of New Jersey and for the people of the State of New Jersey, and if 

it is something that we have been looking for for 20 years to come into being, 

why then is the Department of Community Affairs and the administration so 

fearful of having this come before our elected representatives? Thank you. 

J 0 H N 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Tharik you. There are no questions. 

John Van Hardt. 

VAN H A R D T: My name is John VanHardt, and I am representing 
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the Utility Contractors of New Jersey. We are a State organization, with 

approximately 300 members. 

We are basically in favor of the two bills, as mentioned many times 

this morning. Because of the lateness of the hour, and because of the timing 

in bringing this to the public's awareness. we totally favor any additional 

time that may be gained through this. 

Also, I would like to make mention of the New Jersey Register·, dated 

September 4th, which announced the State Development Guide Plan hearing schedule 

to ask for comments on the alternative uses to be considered for the Plan. 

The first use establishes the Governor's Cabinet Committee on Development 

as the final authority for development throughout the State, superseding all 

other State agencies and their regulations. 

Their second alternative use requires approval by the Cabinet Committee 

on Development, but excludes established regulatory activities. 

We would like your Committee to please take note 

also, if you could, act in favor of these proposed bills. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Thank you. 

Richard Forman. 

of these, and 

Thank you. 

R I C H A R D F 0 R MAN: My name is Richard Forman. I am representing 

the Associated General Contractors of New Jersey, a 200 member organization 

engaged in road building, bridge building, and heavy construction throughout 

the State. 

We highly favor these bills and it is our understanding that this 

Development Guide was to be a guide, not a regulatory club to threaten the 

orderly growth of communities. 

As was already mentioned, in the past two years the Development 

Guide Plan has been used twice in an attempt to stop deserved and desired 

development. In the first instance, the Beneficial Finance Corporation -

their home office in Peapack - was threatened. This multi-million dollar 

project was situated in a no-growth zone, according to the DCA, and they instructed 

the Peapack Government to cancel the project. Beneficial finally paid for 

their own road, adding several million dollars to the cost of the project. 

At about the same time, the DCA was busy canceling a Federal grant 

for the sewerage expansion by .the Gloucester County Sewerage Authority after 

all permits had been approved. The Authority went ahead anyway and borrowed 

from private sources. The Administrator of the Sewerage Authority was told 

by a DCA official that, "she had growth." 

The Associated General Contractors vigorously oppose these dictatorial 

tactics and supports the bills. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Thar.k you very much. 

Robert Woodford. 

R 0 B E R T W 0 0 D F 0 R D: Thank you. I am Robert Woodford, Vice President of 

the New Jersey Business and Industry Association. I want to add our support to the 

legislative oversight proposals for the State Development Guide Plan. 

We draw a major distinction between the mere preference in the funding 

of urban projects, which appears to have an opportunity for restoring the infra­

structure of the cities, and a program, on the other hand, which is coupled 

with that in the Guide Plan to defeat development - attempts at development 

in other areas of the State. 
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The Guide Plan itself points to the declining manufacturing ecbnomy 

in New Jersey. The Guide Plan points to the need for additional housing in 

New Jersey, and it is clear that the d~scouraging of growth in areas outside 

of the cities is not a panacea for providing the housing and the industrial 

and other economic activity that is needed by New Jersey in those cities. 

While we agree with an emphasis on rebuilding the cities, we must 

disagree with any plan that attempts to draw artificial lines on a map to 

determine where housing and economic activity will occur. Therefore, it is 

of vital importance to the Legislature that it assert its authority in the 

review of the way in which this delegated power to an administrative agency 

has been used in drawing up the Guide Plan. There is no question, beyond 

development,the economy of New Jersey is of greater importance than this for 

the review of the Legislature. We therefore support either of these bills, 

or any form of oversight, in the alternative, that the legislature would impose 

upon the Guide Plan. We also support the oversight function of the legislature 

generally in regard to all regulations. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Thank you. 

Mr. Kenneth Pyle. 

K E N N E T H P Y L E: Good afternoon. My name is Ken Pyle. I am here 

wearing a variety of hats, but today I will wear three. I am the President 

of the Society for Environmental Development -- Environmental Economic Development 

Mr. Moeford respresented a while ago. I am here also as a member of the New 

Jersey Economic Development Council and the New Jersey Permanent Coordinating 

Committee. 

It is my belief that the Legislature is long overdue in renewing its 

powers of control over our government on an equal footing with the Executive 

Branch. For the past decade we have been innundated with a plethora of redundant 

regulations, many of which originated either through an Executive Order or 

through a bureaucratic action based upon an original bill or statute which 

was probably two or three pages in lengt,h, out of which grew ninety-eight 

to one hundred and thirty pages of regulation, applied to land use, air, highway 

access, water, and I can go on and on, as you very well know. 

We support the intent and the content of both of the bills, both 

Assemblyman Hurley's and Mr. Gallo's. We are now looking at a situation where 

the Department of Community Affairs and the Governor's Council on Planning 

has developed a zoning map for the entire State, and are moving to adopt it 

officially. This has been referred to, rather quaintly I believe, as a coordinating 

device. The representative from the Governor's office expressed that this 

was a coordinating device. 

I don't think we need this. We have other means of coordination 

in the State and in the government. This plan has the potential of shutting 

down growth in New Jersey, everywhere except the urban centers. The nature 

of the map portrays all of the land use programs that have been adopted into 

the law, CAFRA, Wetlands, Floodplains, Pinelands, Green Acres Program, and Blue 

Acres Program. A key problem with this plan is that the map also imposes 

certain land use programs that are not law: farm land preservation; sky land 

region; Interstate 287, projected route; the coastal zone management strategy, 

which of course is growing out of the CAFRA situation; the protection of acquifers; 

the single source acquifer aspect; steeps and banks; the Delaware-Raritan 
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Canal; the Delaware Water Gap; Barrier Islands; and, of course, on top of 

this we have the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1890 under the jurisdiction of 

the Corps of Engineers. We have flood plains restrictions. We have the Delaware 

River Basin Commission, which divided the Delaware River and Bay up into six 

zones, and exemplified some control over those zones. 

This limits future growth in New Jersey essentially to one million 

acres of urban redevelopment and ties another one million acres of suburban 

land in what has been termed "land reserve", which would virtually be unbuildable 

due to related red tape and regulations. 

The plan is a social and economic document as well as a zoning map. 

It states throughout that its purpose is to control and restrict development, 

limit road improvements and highway construction, discourage residential develop­

ment, avoid extensive clearning of forest areas or disruption of wild life; 

maintain buffers, banks, steeps, and slopes, and so on and so on. The revised 

plan has been the subject of five public hearings, all of which took place 

before many people that would be interested in it received notice, and a 179 

page document, described above. However, in the original concept, we did 

have opportunity to discuss this. We gave our reactions and our observations 

to representatives of the Department of Community Affairs, and I might say 

that they were studiously ignored and not considered as far as I am concerned. 

The plan could be officially adopted on December 15, 1980, under 

the Administrative Procedures Act and without action by the State Legislature. 

Administration officials describe the plan as merely compilation of all the 

various land use programs that exist or that have been suggested in New Jersey. 

One of the purposes, they say, is to steer Federal and State monies away from 

the suburbs and into the urban centers to get a bigger bang for the buck. 

Now, here, I think, there is a large fallacy in existence because the reasons 

that industry and business left the urban centers initially are still there 

intact: The lack of security; the congestion; the lack of adequate labor; 

the poor services; the high taxes, etc., etc. All of these factors still 

remain; so in order to redevelp the urban centers, the Governor has this to 

give some sort of control or pressure, such as this. 

The Development Guide Plan has the potential of becoming the end­

all authority for growth in New Jersey, and could place this authority in 

the hands of the Governor's Cabinet Committee on Development. The Plan, on 

the other hand, could simply be maintained in its present form as a guideline 

whose essential purpose is still to thwart gr6wth in the non-urban areas. 

Under any circumstances, the State does not need a State zoning plan to diminish 

economic opportunities in other tha.n urban centers. The whole concept strikes 

at the heart of the home rule system, and there are some serious constitutional, 

legal questions. Your participation is needed if we are to prevent the imposition 

of this State Development Guide Plan. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Robert Young. I have to apologize, Mr. Young, for passing your 

name on the list, but there was a transition period here and it hadn't been 

checked off. I'm sorry. 

R 0 B E R T Y 0 U N G: I thank you for the invitation to present our 

support of the Assembly Bills 879 and 2144. My name is Robert Young. I represent 

the New Jersey Industrial Development Association, of which I am President. 
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Basically, today I will briefly review with you the purpose and re­

sponsibilities ofiDA and state the problem that we have with the New Jersey 

Development Guide Plan. 

New Jersey IDA consists of 165 member organizations, all responsible 

for the economic development function of New Jersey. The representatives 

come from the State of New Jersey, the New Jersey Economic Development Authority, 

the Division of Economic Development, and offices within the State itself, 

the State Chamber of Commerce, the County Economic Development Departments 

throughout the State, the municipalities, the utilities - natural gas, electric, 

water companies, and New Jersey Bell - the railroads, various banks in the 

State of New Jersey, and,as associates,title companies, associations such 

as the New Jersey Business and Industry Association, the New Jersey Alliance 

for action, etc. 

Our goals and objectives are to promote sound industrial development 

activities in New Jersey, and to assist the State of New Jersey with that 

prime goal I have outlined here in my presentation, which I will leave for 

personal reading. 

Our involvement with the State Development Guide Plan touched upon 

four areas during the year. First was the March 14th meeting where the Gloucester 

County officials presented their State Development Guide Plan draft experience. 

Their half hour taped presentation, that we taped, is revealing and an excellent 

indication of future implementation and its problems. 

The New Jersey IDA legislative committee, during 1980, has supported 

all of the legislative oversight bills, and there are some letters attached 

from our organization, and from myself relative to that. 

The five public hearings that were held were held without adequate 

notice to us, and immediately after the holiday weekend of Labor Day, September 

3, 9, 11, 16, and 18. New Jersey IDA received the State Development Guide 

Plan summary report on September 15th, and the full version of the revised 

draft on October 20th. 

New Jersey IDA's major concerns with the Guide Plan are as follows: 

We feel that they will severely hamper the efforts towards New Jersey's economic 

development program, and to assist the expansion of existing and new industrial 

corporations. 

Two, we feel that competitive states favorably anticipate the desire 

of New Jersey officials to, number one, slow down the economic development 

program; number two, to restrict the development of industrial facilities; 

and, three, to provide incentives against employment opportunities and ratables 

which we feel this plan does. 

Three, the competitive states favorably anticipate attracting the 

interest of our major private developers that were represented here from the 

NAIOP. 

Four, the plan contains two hotly contested segments - the Pinelands 

preservation area, and the Shore Protection Master Plan - which may or may 

not remain in their existing foremat. 

We feel that the plan digs at the heart of the home rule. In other 

words, the New Jersey implementation fosters master plan zoning and land use 

regulations; however, this plan represents a statewide takeover of those areas 

with the clout of both Federal and State funding. 
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Finally, we recommend a future direction for the State Development 

Plan, number one, for it to slow down in its implementation. We feel that 

segments of this plan are excellent, and other parts do very little but to 

appeal to the high pressure groups of today. We mandate that the plan be 

carefully reviewed with officials responsible for the future economic development 

of that State, and some of those were all represented here today. 

The Plan, as I understand it, is earmarked for signing into activity 

on December 15th or 16th of this month. We, for that reason, encourage you 

to pass the legislation that you have proposed to pass. 

We thank you for the. kind offer to make the presentation before 

the Assembly Committee. Hopefully, the facts here will assist your Committee 

with the implementation of the programs that we have outlined here. Thank 

you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Thank you very much. Would you see a need 

for any overall guide plan -- aside from the question we are dealing with 

today of legislative oversight? 

MR. YOUNG: I see, primarily, within the plan that is there, that 

there is a complete lack of any economic considerations whatsoever, and the 

thrust of what the State is attempting to do as far as attracting new industry 

and its existing industry. The municipalities and the counties have effectively, 

I believe,come up with Master Plans. They have been delegated the authority 

to do that, and for the most part they are all intact and conceivably could 

formulate a State Development Plan based on the closer association of the 

counties, which are more closely related to those municipalities within them. 

That is my personal opinion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Would it be safe for us to assume that your 

real objection here is not so much to the manner but to the actual substance 

of the plan? 

MR. YOUNG: Exactly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Whether it has legislative oversight or 

not, your real concern is that the plan just does not provide a good economic 

base for the State? 

MR. YOUNG: Exactly, it really does not take into consideration 

any economic basis. As a matter of fact, one of the statements within the 

Plan is that our attraction and ability to stop losing manufacturing plants 

are beyond the comprehension of the Plan, and it is impossible to do because 

they are going to be lost to the south belt anyway. This is totally absurd. 

Obviously, it was-- I don't know where it came from, or who even said the 

statements, but they are irresponsible statements. Everything that relates 

to the economic considerations has been left out, and where there are materials 

that are contained in here which identify themselves as economic, they are 

totally erroneous. 

Our main thrust is, wherever you have an environmental consideration 

that there be with it an economic consideration. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Thank you very much. 

MR. YOUNG: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CARDINALE: Is there anyone else here who wishes to 

testify today? If not, then the hearing is adjourned. 

(hearing concluded) 
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Statement of 
Assembly Minority Leader James R. Hurley 

on the 
State Development Guide Plan 

December 9, 1980 

Planning is an essential ingredient in these days of dwindling natural 

resources, burgeoning development and growing populations. But planning 

is futile-- and often destructive-- when it is done without the full 

participation and knowledge of as many people as possible. 

It is people that planning affects, not buildings or forests or high-

ways. The objects on this earth are important to people only if they affect 

people. Thus, planning must be the same as all phases of government: by, 

for and of the people. 

Certainly, it would be impossible for nearly eight million New Jerseyans 

to participate directly in anything of this nature. But that is why a 

representative Legislature is elected. 

The State Development Guide Plan, first published as a preliminary draft 

in September, 1977, and updated some 18 months ago, has been developed by 

the Department of Community Affairs, Division of State and Regional Planning. 

It has not, in any official manner, come before the Legislature. Yet 

in its own words, the planning division says: 

11 For the State Plan to be meaningful, we need the input of everyone. 

Only in this way can it truly reflect the needs and aspirations of the 

people of New Jersey." 

But the State Development Guide Plan has quietly become the law of the 

land in New Jersey 1 s future development without one whit of legislative 

approval, public approval, constitutional basis or statutory authority--

simply by default. 
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To put it simply, the State Development Guide Plan is a statewide 

zoning map designed to inhibit development throughout most of the state and 

to encourage development where a handful of top Administration executives 

want it. 

As long ago as January, 1979, the Division of State and Regional 

Planning attempted to block the construction by a private corporation of 

a new executive headquarters in Peapack, Somerset County, on the excuse that 

such a building 11would conflict with Governor Byrne's urban revitalization 

goals •.• •• and by threatening to cut off state funds to Route 206 in Peapack. 

At the time this letter was written, the Guide Plan was little more 

than a year old, and it is clear that it was being enforced then -- before 

it was even fully revised and approved by the Administration. That particular 

letter was later rescinded, but the fact that it was ever written should be 

a warning flag. 

This State Plan has no basis in law, and yet it has been having the 

subtle and insidious effect of law. 

This is not government by, for and of the people. Rather, it seems 

more like government by, for and of the bureaucracy. 

For this reason, I have reintroduced a bill I introduced in the last 

session of the Assembly that would require legislative approval of the plan 

prior to any enforcement of the standards and concepts contained in the plan. 

It is not necessarily the content of the plan to which I address myself 

here although there are parts about which I would be more than willing 

to argue -- and it is not the content of the plan which is important at 

this point. 
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It is the nature of the plan -- the fact that it reflects not the 

needs and aspirations of the people of New Jersey, but a state planning 

division's idea of those needs and aspirations. 

The Guide Plan is being used to deny a variety of permits that involve 

state agencies and to withhold state and federal funds for public works 

projects in any area which the authors of the plan have deemed should not 

grow. The opposite, of course, would be true in those limited areas where 

the planners would like more growth-- primarily the urban centers. 

Those few insiders who happen to read the New Jersey Register have 

been asked to comment on the plan itself, and to choose one of two methods 

of enforcement: 

(1) "Consistency with the Guide Plan would be required of all 

investment and regulatory actions in which State agencies participate 

in an administrative, advisory or policy-making capacity unless 

justification for any inconsistency is approved by the Cabinet 

Development Committee." 

(2) "Consistency \;lith the Guide Plan would be required, unless 

explicitly justified and approved by the Cabinet Development 

Committee. of all State policy-making and investment decisions but 

not of regulatory activities where the standards for review and 

approval have been firmly established by statate or practice." 

In other words, shall we give the Governor's cabinet absolute power to 

ignore law, tradition and justice in imposing this bureaucrat's plan on 

New Jersey? Or shall we only allow the Governor's cabinet to slip its 

unsolicited interference in between the cracks in the law and the establishe~ 

rules7 
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It hardly even matters what the Guide Plan suggests, when you consider 

the unbridled power that the Governor and his cabinet officers on the 

Cabinet Development Committee are handing themselves with this Guide Plan. 

Make no mistake about these hearings. They appear to be held prior 

to some sort of approval that would implement the plan. The plan, however, 

has already been implemented. Municipalities have received letters warning 

them not to violate the Guide Plan, on pain of losing state and federal aid, 

and countless proposed development projects are being endangered by the 

existence of a plan that has no legal right to exist. 

While it is good and admirable to ask citizens for their "input" into 

a plan such as this, that input cannot be fully expressed and publicly known 

without involving the legislative process. 

would hope that any plans to implement the Guide Plan by the Governor's 

office would not be carried out until and unless this legislative process 

is completed. 

And certainly, federal officials should not grant the plan any standing 

when considering funds for New Jersey projects, until and unless the legis­

lative process· in this matter is completed. 

People, after all, are the state. The bicameral, representative govern­

ment established under the New Jersey Constitution is a system designed to 

handle any and all business of government. There is no logical reason to 

circumvent that system now, with a plan that would ultimately affect every 

man, woman and child, alive or yet unborn, in the state. 

I sincerely hope that the system is allowed to work in this most volatile 

of issues before we are in a position of having to undo something that is 

already done. 
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EDWARD TREACY 

PETE VALENTINUZZI 

FRANK DE VITO 

JAMES DILLON 

FRANK ESPOSITO 

ALFRED FONTANA 

FRANK FORST 

JAMES KIRK 

EDWARD KRAMER 
STEVE WILSON 

IRVIN MC FARLAND DOMINICK PULSINELL.I AL WURF 

TESTIMONY 
of 

N. J. STATE AFL-CIO 
on 

STATE DEVELOPMENT GUIDE 
and 

ASSEMBLY BILLS 879 & 2144 
DECEMBER 9, 1980 

ASSEHBLY CHAMBERS, TREN'l'ON', N. J. 

TheN. J. State AFL-CIO is strongly opposed to arbitrary 

regulations and zoning restrictions that could be authorized under 

the State Development Guide Plan as proposed. We urge this 

committee to give favorable consideration to Assembly Bills 879 and 

2144 which would require legislative approval before new zoning 

requirements could be implemented under this act. 

Considering the economic plight and runaway shop syndrome 

which New J.ersey and the entire Northeast is staggering under 1 

it's inconceivable to us that the state would create still another 

bureaucratic morass to stifle the growth of business and develop-

ment. 

While labor agrees with the noble goal of rebuilding 

New Jersey's urban areas, we don't feel that it can be done at the 

expense of home rulee No one in state government, neither the 

Governor nor the State Department of Community Affairs, should be 

authorized to take-away a county's right to self rule and 

development. Sx 



We can't agree with the concept that some all-prevading 

presence in Trenton knows ~hat is best for communities in our 

Northwest sector. County and local officials in that area were 

elected by the people to make the vital decisions regarding 

economic development and preservation of the environment. 

The State AFL-CIO is greatly concerned by the potential eco-

nomic consequences implicit in the State Development Guide Plan. 

New Jersey, with some of the toughest environmental laws in the 

nation, already has a reputation for being anti-business. Further 

regulations will only add to that stigma and drive more employment 

and business opportunities fron our borders. 

Assembly Bills 879 and 2144 will at least place reins on the 

unbridled executive authority being contemplated under this plan 

and provide an avenue for legislative oversight and a balanced 

input of ideas. 

Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

~~~~ 
Charles H. Marciante 

6x 



Most associations did not receive notification of any of the five 

Development Guide Plan hearings conuucted by the Department of 

Community Affairs between September 3 and September 18, 1980. As 

a result, very few people attended the hearings and to our knowledge, 

no business or industry related associations had the opportunity 

to comment. The original adoption date was October 17, 1980, the 

new date as we understand it is December 15, 1980. It would seem 

a plan as extensive as the Guide should be aired publicly with all 

interested parties affort ample opportunity to comment. 

We respectfully suggest that the Committee obtain a further extension 

of the adoption deadline pending legislative action on A-879 and/or 

A-2144 • 
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AI'PEN!lTX 

l.l ::T IJF l'Bt<::~f<:tJTI\'1 I ON,(; 1\Nll DL;('[l".:~.J ON:1 REGAHDING THE STATE DEVELOPMENT 
CIJlfJI.; t'L./\~1 , L'J'(') lo d:1lc. 

:~AMPLE "f'!.i\N CilMPAHl.';on" r .. mf101l/HJ[llJ~1, "HIDDLESEX COUNTY LAND USE 
CRO:""l::-J\CCf<FTf\NClO: ,JOTNT ST 1\TlJS REPORT," June 30, 19'(9. 

STATEt1ENT uf T!lE NI;:w JF:R,';EY COUNTY PLANNERS ASSOCIATION, 
:;epter!lbf~r· 'l, 1980. 
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1'176 

5/1 

'5/27 

6/J 

6/21 

6/28 

8/13 

10/28 

12/J/ 

1977 

2/lCJ 

2/18 

2/18 

3/3 

~ ------- ---------------------........-----~--~.--..... 

STATE DI':VELOPHENT c:UID!: PLAN l'i:LSENTATIONS 

NOTE: A presentation is charHcterL:ed by the following -­
description of the ~;tate pLmning progra:n to audiences 
which have had generally little exposure Ln this or 
previous state planning progt-~tms. \~hilt! opportunities 
for discussion of the l'latl hv till' audit>nce are providr·d 
during presentation~;, th<2ir purpose is primarily to 
explain the Plan to the' audi,•nct· rathL·r th,m to ,lbtain 
specific suggestions for stat [ cnnsidt•cttiotl. 

"South J,•rsL>y in Transitio" -- ,\ Horksl1•.1;l i.a Land U:~c PLu.ning," 
sponsored by Glassboro Stat:<! College, Cl:1sshoro, NJ 

Special Board Committe>Pof lilc Y<·ar 2000 Plan, llv]:-nv:uc \';tlley 
Regional Planning Cotmni.ssi,,n, l'hiLldelplti:t, PA 

Governor Brendan Byrne and staff, Trt·ntou, N.J 

Commissioner D:1vicl Bardin, lJl'puty Corru~i~;~; Loner Rocco Ricci, 
Assistant Cormnissioners Glenn Paulson and netty Wilson, Division 
Directors .:-md ·slaff, Department of Envl.ronmentdl Protection, 
Trenton, JU 

Conunissi.unE~r Joseph Hoffmnu and st:tff, !J,·partrnvut of Labor <tnd 
Industry, Trenton, NJ 

Hilliarn T. Cahill, Chairman, ot·lwr nwmbers and staff, 
Capital Budgeting :1ncl Planning Commission, Tt-r-nlon, N.J 

Cornmi~;sioner ll.lan Sagner, A:;~;i:>Lanl Conuui~>s.iotwt-~> Peter Slilll(',] anu 
Donald Goodkind, and staff, lJl'p<trtllll'l1l of Tr;msportation, Trenton, NJ 

PlannLng Liaison Committee·, Officv of St:!tl' Ec,momi.c l'lamdng, 
Trenton, N.! 

Comndss:i.onl'r .Tolin J. llol-n ;md sloff, llt•pi!rtmf'nt ol.' Labor f, Industry, 
and members of the State Economic Jlevelopment Council, New Bruns\vick, NJ 

Planning and research staff, New Jersey Publlc Service Electric a11d 
Gas Company, Newark, NJ 

Urban Affairs staff, New .J,·r~a·y lh•l] 'l'l'lt•phnne Compnny alld 
Hilliam Shore, l{cr,lonal l' liln As~wc iat Lon, Nl'\·urk, NJ 

Public officials forum, sp(·ltson~cl by Lll•.' l'!icldlvsl':< Count-y Planning Board, 
New B runs\v iek, NJ 

lOx 



1977 

3/8 Housing and Land Usc Seminar, spOI;sorcd by thr~ rl0tropolitan Regional 
Couneil, llni.on C.ounty 

3/10 

3/16 

J/21 

3/23 

3/29 

3/31 

3/31 

4/1 

4/13 

4/19 

5/16 

5/17 

6/24 

6/28 

6/29 

8/5 

9/28 

Senior Planning Class, Tenafly Hi)•h School, Tenafly, NJ 

Housing and Lund Use Seminar, sponsored by the Netropolitan Regional 
Council and Monmouth County Planning Board, Freehold, NJ 

Hc>Us i.ng and Land Use Sc>rninar, Ct'nt r.-11 Sub-Hegion, sponsored by 
Hetropolitan Regional Council & tlidJlcsex County Planning Board, 
Piscataway, NJ 

Houslng and Land Use Seminar, Eastern Sub-Region, sponsored by Metropolitan 
Regional Council :tnd Nidcllesex County Planning Board, Perth Amboy, NJ 

Housing and Land Use Seminar, Southern Sub-Region, sponsored by Netropolitan 
Regional Council and Middlesex County Planning Board, South Brunswick, NJ 

Citizens Advisory Task Force on Open Space and Recreation, convened by 
the Green Acres Program, Department of Environmental Protection, Trenton 
State College, Ewing, NJ 

Hercer-Somerset-Hiddlescx Regional Study Council (Samuel Hammill, 
Execntlve Dirl'r·.tor, ~mel oth0rs), l'rit1Cc>lon, NJ 

KennL'lh Py.le and otl1cu~, AUi~uH·c lor i\ct..lon, Trenton, NJ 

Nt.•H Jer~~cy Hunicip;tl P]Cllllll'rs i\~;~;c•ciation, New HrunsHic:k, NJ 

HillvUle Kiwanis L:lub, Hil.lville, NJ 

Hilbur Smith and i\ssoci.atl'~;, Trent< :1, NJ (NOTE: This is but one of 
many consulting firms \-lhich havL· n·ceivl'cl briefings on the Plan.) 

Darryl Caputo, New Jersey Conservotion Foundation, and Candance Ashmun, 
Ne\v Jersey Association of Envlronmc:nta1 Commissions, Trenton, NJ 

Charles Coyle~ ;md Community Dev('1opment lZcpresentat:ives, Department of 
Labor: & Industry, Tre11ton, NJ 

Ne\v Jersey Conservation Foundatio11 and the Mcrcer-Somerset-Hiddlesex 
Regional Study Council, Cranbury, NJ 

New Jvrsey County P.LtllllCIS i\ssocint iun, 1\tLmtic City, NJ 

John Madden, I'launing ll.ir~·~·t"r fur 1\rld!~t·Hat:er Townsh·ip, Trenton, NJ 

Northvestcrn An~a ChaptL~r, New Jcr:-:cy Federation of Planning Officials, 
Clinton, NJ 

llx 
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197"' 

9/2) 

10.'13 

lC/14 

l'J/22 

11/3 

U/9 

12/9 

12/15 

1978 

1/ tl 

1/11 

1/12 

1/18 

1/26 

1/31 

3/7 

3/15 

3/15 

3/23 

3/29 

4/6 

4/l'd 

i!/19 

Richard Nc:--1anus and Frederick Conley, Aclmi.tli~;Lrator nnd Solicitor, 
Bernards Tmmship, Trenton, NJ 

Al Leigh, Citizens Cormnitte<· on Land ll:;t•, Fr:tnklin Tmvn~;hip, Trenton, NJ 

Ne\.; Jersey Environmental Congress, Pr.i n•·c•ton, NJ 

Economic Development Committ•-·e, State Cll<tmbt•r of Commerce 

Northeast Art•.:J 208 Public Advisory Comrnittl'•', Hayne, NJ 

Clara Barton School, Bordent:u1m, NJ 

Upper Rari Lm 208 Pub 1 ic Adv i .c;ory Commi L Let', Somerville, NJ 

Burlington County Planning Board and st<lf [, t-!ount !lolly, NJ 

Monmouth County 208 Public A.!visot·y Committcl~, freehold, NJ 

Public Forum, sponsored hy the Nercer (\lunl y l'lannin~; Hoard, Trc•nton, N.T 

Southern Area Chapter, New .ltTsey Fedcr:1t ion of Planning OfficL1ls, 
.Centerdon, NJ 

Central Area Chapter, New Jersey Federation uf Planning Officials, 
Princeton, NJ 

Northern Area Chapter, Nc\.J Jersey Federal ion of Plmming Officials, 
Clifton, NJ 

State Planning Conference, Newark, NJ 

Eighth Annual Environmental Commissioners Conference, Trenton, NJ 

Sussex County Planning Board and guests, Newton, NJ 

New Jersey Chapter, American Institute of Planners, Princeton, NJ 

South Jersey Development Council, Atlantic City, NJ 

PLmning students, Flemington, NJ 

Lower Delnware 208 Public Advisory Corami.ttec, Upper Deerfield, NJ 

Delaware-Atlantic Arf'a ot: tl1e NC'w JersL~Y t·'t•df'r:Ll i.n11 of l'l:uming Offir·jnls, 
Sewell, N.J 

12x 



1978 

4/20 

4/21 

4/26 

6/29 

10/27 

11/8 

11/15 

12/5 

12/19 

1979 

1/11 

1/19 

3/21 

3/30 

4/19 

5/3 

Upper Delaware 208 Public Arlvisory Conuni t tee, Phillipsburg, NJ 

Planning students, McGuire Air Force Base 

Southern New Jersey Chapter of ProfC'ssional Engineers, Cherry Hill, NJ 

Regional Plan Assembly for Cumberland County, Bridgeton, NJ 

Trenton City Planning Board :md c1 t ize11~;, 'l'n·nt:on, NJ 

Passaic Valley Hayors Assot:iation, Spring \';tll.cy, NY 

Sussex County Planning Hoard and cltizC'ns, NPwton, NJ 

North .Jcn;L:y Brancl1, American Society of Civil Engineers, \vest Orange, NJ 

Rural Resources CoT!Unittee, Centerton, NJ 

County Agricultural Agents, New BrunsHlck, NJ 

Monmouth-Ocean Development Council, FreehoJd, NJ 

North \vest Chapter, New Jersey Hom(;• Bu1ldcrs L\s~:ociation, Cl"i.nton, NJ 

Cabinet Committee on Pennit Coordination, Trenton, NJ 

Office of Policy and Planning Conference on Economic Policy, Drumthwacket, 
Princeton, NJ 

Horris County Planning Board, Morristown, NJ 

5/8 Somerset County Planning Board, Som('rvj 11 <', NJ 

'j/21 Middlesex County Planning Board, freehoJJ 

5/23 Bergen County Planning Board, Hackensack 

6/20 Alliance of Manufacturing & Metals ProcPss1n~ Industries, Edison 

6/21. Essex County Planning Board, BellPville 

7/10 Middlesex County Planning Board, New Brunswick 

7/11 Union County Planning Board, Elizabeth 

8/9 Sllem County political delegation, DrumtlMacket 

13x 



1930 

1118 

8/11 

8/14 

9/3 

9/9 

9/11 

9/16 

9/18 

10/2 

10/7 

10/30 

10/31 

111'{ 

Office of Legislative Services staff, Trenton 

Warren County Plannint~ l3o<:!rcl and staff, flEllvider·e 

Public presentation .:1t S\·mrtsward St:Lte Park 

Public Hearinc;, Rutr;er·<>' Robeson Campus Center, Nowar·k 

Public Hearinr;, R:i.chard Stockton .Stat0 Collep:e, Pomona 

Public Hearing, New Jersey State Mus<~U!!! 1\uditol~ium, Trenton 

Public Hearing, Hackettstown High Scil'_)ol Library, Hackettstown 

Public Hearing, Rutgers' Coller;e Cen !.(T, Camden 

New Jersey Economic Development Council, Newark 

Public meeting of the t'lorris County Planr:ing Board, Morristown 

Economic Development Commit tee of the S ta t-,e Chamber of Commerce, Newark 

New Jersey Buildet'.s and llou. :ing For·w1! 

Conference, co-sponsored by tltc New .lc~rsey Alliance for Action and the 
Department of Community 1\ffa:irs, Forsgate Country Club 

14x 



1975 

1976 

4/13 

4/15 

4/20 

4/20 

4/22 

5/11 

6/10 

9/9 

10/l 

STATE DEVELOPHENT GUIDE PLAN DISCUSSIONS 

NOTE: For the purpose of this listing, a discussion includes 
a presentation component, but the major emphasis is on 
obtaining additional technical information from the 
audience. Typically, discussions involve fewer people 
and arc informally structured. They also tend to involve 
people who have some familiarity with previous state 
planning efforts and often with the current effort as 
well. 

Bet\veen March and May of this year, staff of the Rureau of Statewide 
Planning visited each of the 21 connty planning boards to solicit any 
comments on how a State Plan shou] (1 be structured A.nd what role the 
counties should play in the context of a State Plan. County planners 
were asked to i.c!ent ify major issu£c,; within their jurisdiction and to 
provide any materials, such as county pJ <li1S, which might be assistance 
in preparing state-level plans. 

Secretary of Agriculture Phillip 1\l;tmpi a11d staff, Trenton 

Robert Stokes and staff, Green Acr~s Program, Department of 
Environmental Protectioi1, Trenton 

Com:nissioner Patricia Q. Sheehan, Department of Community Affairs, Trenton 

Staff of the Division of Water Resources, Department of Environmental 
Protection, Trenton 

Daniel Pawling, Tri-State Regional Planning Commission, Trenton 

Paul Arbesmnn, Director of Envin>mH·nt:J.l Quality; David KLnsey, Office 
of Environmental H.Pvicw; and staff, Department of Environmental 
Protection, Trenton 

Kej th Rosser <Wd Robert Engle, .Depart.m<.~nt of Transportation, Trenton 

Robert Richmond, Tri-Stat<.' Heg i on~tl P] ann i ng Commission, Trenton 

Stephen CarrolL and staff, Tri-Stalt~ l:<.~g~ional Planning Commission, Trenton 

LL•u Laaksont•n and staff, Ht~rcer Cuunt:y Planning Board, Trenton 

15x 
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·1976 

10/15 

10/20 

10/21 

10/28 

11/3 

11/4 

11/9 

11/ll 

11/15 

11/22 

11/23 

11/24 

11/29 

11/30 

12/1 

12/8 

12/9 

12/12 

12/15 

12/16 

12/22 

12/28 

12/28 

- 2 -

Robert Halsey and staff, Monmouth County Planning Roard, Freehold 

Douglas Powell and staff, Middlesex County Planning Board, New Brunswick 

Dumont VanDoren and staff, lluntcrdon Co1n:ty I' lallning Ro;~rd, Flemington 

Dudley Hoodhridge and staEf, Morris Cuuuly !'Janning Board, Horr.Lstow:1 

Elwood Jarmer and staff, Cape Hay County Planning t;oanl, Cape May 

Thomas Thomas ar.rl staEf, Ocl'an County Planning Board, Tum:; R.iver 

Andre\11 Pasc:zk(n,rski and stafl, Sw;sL'X Cotll:ly Planning Board, NL~wton 

1-./illiam Roach and staff, Somt~rset County Planning Board, Somerville 

Charles Richmond (Assistant Director) and staff, Gloucester County 
Planning Board, Clayton 

Russell Miles and staff, Harren County Planning Roard, Belvidere 

Joseph Patermo and staff, Cmnclcn County l'l nn;1 i.ng Board, Pennsauken 

James Rogc~rs and staff, Passaic County P1 :wniug Goard, Paterson 

Bernard Cedar anti staff, Bm ling!. em Connt.y PLuming Board, Haunt Holly 

Office of Legislative Servic,~s, Trenton 

Staff, Union County Planning Board, Elizabeth 

·Staff, Essex County Planning Board, l\ellL·ville 

Chester Ambler and staff, Salem County PJanning Board, Salem 

John Holland and staff, Cumhcrlan(l County Planning Board, n d.dgeton 

Sussex County Planning Board and staff, Newton 

Staff, Hudson County Planning Board, Jersey City 

Donald Clark and staff, Bergen County Planning Board, Hackensack 

Gregg Crescenzo and staff, Atlantic County Planning Board, Atlantic City 

Constance Gibson and staff, Ne\·1 Jersey Nurtp,age Finance Agency, Trenton 

l6x 



1977 

l/13 

1/20 

1 /2L; 

3/3 

J/9 

3/23 

5/20 

8/18 

8/26 

11/22 

ll/29 

12/1 

12/13 

12/29 

1978 

l/12 

'l/ 1 () 

2/22 

3/30 

Raymond Petterson and staff, Office of State Economic Planning, Trenton 

David Davies anrl st<tff, Division of Housing, Depe1rtment of Community 
Affairs, Trenton 

Robert Stokes and staff, Green /\cn•s Prugram, Dq.>artment of Environmental 
Protection, Trenton 

Staff, Division of Hater ResOllrct·~:, Department of Environmental 
Protection, Trenton 

Joseph Miri and consultants, Water Supply Master Plan project, Division 
of Hater }{(~Scl\lrecs, Deparlmt•nt of J·:nvirunmental ProLec:tion, Trenton 

Water Quality staff, Division of W~tter Resources, Department of 
Environmental Protection, Treuton 

Staff, Bureau of Statewide Planning Department of Transportation, Trenton 

Staff, Tri-State Regional Planning Commission, Trenton 

Planning directors of northern Nl'\v J'~rsey counties, representatives of 
Regional Plan Association and of the Tri-State Regional Planning Commission, 
Ne..v Brunswick 

Staff, Divis ion of Hau,r Rl·~;our,:e:', .lk·partment uf Environmental 
Protection, Trenton 

Leo Laaksonen and Ray \vorol>, I>kret"r County Planning Board, Trenton 

John Moore, Department of Transportation, Trenton 

Joseph Miri, Hater Supply :Haster l'l<Hl, Department of Environmental 
Protection, Trenton 

George Horzepa, 208 staff, Department of Environmental Protection, Trenton 

Anthony Ricigliano and staff, DivJsion of Water Resources, Department 
of Environmental Prot(•ct:ion, Trvnto!l 

N<.,111i>(•r:·; nwl ~;t;lff, CapiLli !'.udg<'lill)'. <111d PI:Jnning Cnmmis:;ion, Trenton 

Somerset County l'launing Buard sta!f, Trentun 

Nayors and planning boards of six cnnlillunities in northern Somerset 
County, Bernards 
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1978 

4/20 

4/25 

5/2 

8/15 

10/25 

11/3 

12/8 

1979 

2/22 

2/27 

2/28 

3/7 

3/28 

3/29 

4/5 

Tri-State and Middlesex County Planning Board Staff, New Hrunswick 

Cross-acceptance discussions with Niudlt·~3cx County, Tri-State and 
local staffs, South Brunswick 

Northeast Area 208 Land Use Subcommittee, Boonton 

Cross-acceptance discussion with Tri-State and Somerset County 
planning staff, Somerville 

Cross-acceptance discus~i.on vdlh TrJ-St;JLL' and Uuion Couuty 
planning staff, Elizabeth 

Cross-acceptance discussion vith Tri-State :md Monmouth County 
planning staff, Freehold 

Cross-acceptance discussion \J it h Tr [ -Statv nnd Hudson County planning 
staff, Jersey City 

Cross-acceptance discussion \J i th Tri-State and Passaic County planning 
staff, Paterson 

Cross-acceptance discussion witl1 Tri-State and Bergen County planning 
staff, Hackeusack 

Cross-acceptance discuss ion \vi tit Tri-Sta Ll' and Somerset County staff, 
Somerville 

Cross-acceptance discussion vith Tri-State and Hergen County staff, 
Hackensack 

Follow-up discussion with Cuml>crland Couuty Planning Board, staff, 
county and local officials, Bridgeton 

Cross-acceptance discussions \vith Tr 1-Sta t.e and Monmouth County staff, 
Freehold 

Cross-acceptance discussions with Tri-State and Middlesex County staff, 
New Bruns,.;ick 

Cross-acceptance discussions with Tri-State and Passaic County staff, 
Paterson 

Cross-acceptance discussions with Tri-Statr and Union County staff, 
Elizabeth 

18x 



1979 

4/16 

5/1 

5/15 

5/2L; 

6/1 

6/S 

6/6 

6/15 

6/22 

6/29 

7/10 

8/3 

8/16 

8/21 

9/6 

9/18 

9/25 

lll/1 0 

10/23 

11/3 

11/13 

Industrial Park DPvelopec-s Assoclati •.>n, Trenton 

Cros:-;-·acceptance discu~>sions w.tth Tr i-Stat(! and Some.!rSL't County staff, 
Somerville 

Cross-acceptance discussions with Tri-State and Monmouth County staff, 
Freehold 

Cross-acceptance discussions with Tri-State and Middlesex County Planning 
Board staff, New Brunswick 

Cross-acceptance discussions vith Tri-State and Morrls County Planning 
Board staff, Norristown 

Cross-acceptance Cliscussi.ons with Tr i·-St ate and Essex County Planning 
Board staff, Belleville 

Cross-acceptance dJsc:ussions with Tri-State and Somerset County Planning 
Board staff, Somerville 

Cross-acceptance discussions with Tri-State and Middlesex County Planning 
Board staff, New Brunswick 

Cross-acce}Jtance discussions with Hiddlesex County Planning Board and 
Tri-State staff, New Brunswick · 

Cross-acceptance discussions with Tr.i-State and Monmouth County Planning 
Board staff, Freehold 

Northeast 208 Planning Section, DEP and Tri-State, Trenton 

Atlantic County Planning Board ~taff, Trenton 

Passaic County Planning Board staff and consultants, Paterson 

Tri-State, DEP, Middlesex County Pl:1.nning Board staffs, New Brunswick 

Passaic County Planning Board staff and Tri-State staff, Clifton 

Tri-State and Niddlesex County Planning Board staffs, New Brunswick 

Tri-State and Passaic County Plannlng Board staffs, Clifton 

Tri-State staff; Nvw York City 

Tri-State staff, New York City 

Tri-State st:2ff, Nt.~w York City 

Tri-State staff anJ Middlesex County Pla11ning Honrd striff, New Brunswick 

19x 



1979 

12/14 

12/20 

1980 

-- 6 -

Tri-State and Middlesex County Planning Board staffs, New Brunswick 

Commissioner of Conununity Affairs, State Office of Farmers Home 
Administration, Assemblyman Herman and staff of the Gloucester 
County Utilities Authority 

1/10 John \Veini_;ar·L Llilll :)t('\·J,wt tki:(•n::i•·, Jli.v i. j,,,l td. C!liL:LuJ 1\r:;_:out·u~:;, 

Department of Environme!tLal i'r'otectiott, Tr·c·nton 

:?/5 Atlantic County f'lanninz Bo:•:·d .staff, f1Ll.mt i.e City 

2/15 Christ.l)pher- Harren, ~i:-tlc:n Clll;nty l'Ltnrlin;~ p.,,:wd, ~;;llcm 

2/J.7 

3/19 

3/26 

4/29 
4/3G 
512 

5/14 

5/23 

6/10 

6/26 

712 

719 

7/22 

'( 129 

'( 130 

10/14 

Terry Moore and staff, l'inelands Cot:Jmi.!::>:l ion, Nevi LJ:;bou 

Tri-State staff, New York Ci 1.y 

Tri-State staff and Somerset County Flanning Board staff, Somerville 

Pinelands Commission staff, New Lishon 
Planning directors of Huntcrdon, Sussex anJ Harren Counties, Flemington 
Pinelands Corrunission staff, New Lisbon 

Tri-State and Middlesex County Planning Board staffs, New Brunswick 

Tri-State and Bergen County Planninc Board staffs, l~ckensack 

Tri-State and Monmouth County l'lanni nr~ 1\oard :;Laff'~3, Freehold 

Atlantic County Planning Uo<wd staff, Atlanl ic City 

Hunterdon County Planning Board staff, Flemington 

Cape May County Planninc: Board staff, Cape t1ay Court Hou::.:o 

Ocean County Planning Board :staff, Tom::; H i. ver 

Farmers Home Admini:Jlration ::;tafr, Hobbj11sville 

Tri-State ancl Division of V/at.t!r' Hn:3our·ct!:; (Ill·:!') ::JLaff's, Tr·enton 

Arthur Young, lobbyist, and :;pokcsmc~n of variou:1 i.ndustPial associations 

20x 



TO: Joel S. Weiner, Tr~-Stat.e Starrling Camuttee on Land Use, 
F.ncrqy and Envi rorm~nt 

FRCN: 

Richard A. Ginman, Director, Division of State and Regional 
Planning, New Jersey ~partnent of Carrrn.mi ty Affairs 

l))ug las S. ~ 11, Direc~tor, Middlesex County P lannillg Board 

Katharine Poslosky, Tri-State Land Use Coordinator for 
New Jersey 

Mary Winder, Principal Planner, Division of State and Regional 
Planning, New ,Jersey Depart:nenL of Ccmmmity Affairs 

John A. Sully, Carprehensive Planning, Middlese.x County 
Planning Board 

DATE: Jtme 30, 1979 

Sl.JBJEX:T: Middlesex County Land Use Cross-Acceptance Joint Status Report 

CC: F. Johnson, F. Lapp, R. Richma1d, D. PawlD1g, D. Stansfield, 
R. Hoeh 

This report has been prepared jointly by the staffs of the 
Middlesex C' .. m.mty Planning Boct.rd (M.:::PB), the Division of State and 
Regional Planning, New Jersey DepcJ.rtme.J1t of Ccmnuni ty Affairs (N.n:x::;n.) , 
ru1d the •rri-State Regional Planning Commission (TSRPC). 

The report: Slllll'\arizes the consistency and inconsistency of tie 
land use policies, plan rtE.ps, and year 2000 JX>pulation, employm:::.nt 
and housing targets of our respective agencies. A detailed Policy 
Canparison Vbrksheet is attached. Information regarding map analysis 
is available ill the files uf e.ach agency. 

On the basis of t.~is rep::>rt, staffs reccmrend that the Middlesex 
County Planning Board, the New Jersey Depart:Irent of Ccmm..m.ity .Z\ffairs 
and the 'I'ri-State Regional Plannillg Comnssion may no.v proceed to 
consider the cross-accept;mce of ead1 other's land use plans. 

Consistencies 

Staff review of each agencies plans indicates that there are no 
policy inconsistencies. Generally, the land use plans of tie three 
agencies see.k to alter the trends which would cause detri.rrental 
econan.i c and envirol'1Irent.al impacts. Emphasis is an strengthening 
older urban centers, encouragillg new developrEnt at dE>nsi ties that 
would support public investments such as sewer and water systans, 
conserving critical lands, and balancing jobs, dwellings and services. 

3 
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-----------------------·· ---- -·--·---------..,-------

Mi.&Uesex County staff requests oonsideration of the follo..rjng 
policy refi.nemmts. (See attached Supplerentary Ccrrarents.) 

J\gn..~t has been re.acht-rl erron<J 1-t::PE\, NJI.CA and 'l'SRPC staffs witl1 
regard to the changes requested for the 'I'SRPC & N.TLCJ\ maps. 

Middlesex County has reo:mren::l£~ several ch,J.r~ges to T'SRPC .E:ca1anic 
Centers an:l Residential Densities rraps, all of v.tuch are within the 
oon text of policy consistency. 

ProfOSed Action: It is recx::mrended that TSRPC make thcw,c char¥jeS 
agreed to by staff. 

Middlesex County has also requested changt.'::. in the state plan 
map (see attached map). 

Proposed Action: Pevisions will be made to the St.at.e Develq:m::"Jlt Guide 
plan when all recamendations have been made by each of the New Jersey 
Tri-State counties. 

Year 2000 Planning Targets 

Populatirn targets are consistent am::mg the three agencies. 

Housing mit tart;ets were not available for CXTl\Jd.rison at this 
t.i.Jre. 

E?nploym:nt 

TSRPC 

NJIX".A 

M:PB 

337,000 

not addressed 

359,000 

Middlesex County errployment target is inoonsistent with TSRPC 
by +6.5%. 

Prop?sed Ac_tioo: ~ to table. TSRPC is !"ION in the pro:;ess of 
reevaluating year 2000 target nunbers. 

JCP:mh 
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Supplemelltary Comments Middlesex County 

II.l. 

.. 

• 

' 
Critical Lands - Water Resources 

Along with the State, Middlesex County believes that fri-State's 
description of WRter supply watersheds and headwater areas is too 
vague for practical application, since it could include very large 
areas. 

Accordingly, we request further refinements in Tri-State's 
definition and mapping of these areas, to more clearly define those 
portion$ actually cons:f.dered "critical lands." 

,. 
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Supplem&Qtary Comments Middlesex County 

111.1. Criteria for designation of open land areas 

~ 

Middlesex County requests clarification of a portion of the 
State's policy statement on Limited Growth Areas, i.e. "They also 
do not contain concentrations of environmentally sensitive lands 
nor prime farmland which merit particular state attention at this 
time." ~e do not believe that this statement is accurat:e,-as applied to 
portions in the Limited Growth in Middlesex County. 

P'or example, the Limite!'\ Grow-rh Area shown east of Rt. 130 
.and north of Rt. 522 in South b:::unswick contains Pigeon Swamp, which 
is scheduled to receive an $8 million State investment via the Green 
Acres Program for acquisition as an important groundwater recharge 
area and passive recreation area. It will be a State Park. Unless 
the policy statement is altered, this area should be designated as 
"Open Space" in the SDGP. 

A second example concerns the prime agricultural area in 
Plainsboro, Granbury and West Windsor (Mercer Co.). 'While not as 
large in the aggregate as some other areas designated "Agricultural" 
on the SDGP map, this district nevertheless contains some 450o± acres 
of Class I and II actively-fanned lands. It presently is designated 
as part of Limited Growth Area, and does not h;tve public sewer or water. 

The County believes that this are~ is of sufficient quality as 
agricultural land to "merit particular state attention" in any future 
agriculture preservation program. 

Accordingly, we request either amendment of the SDGP map to designate 
this area as "Agricultural", or alterations of the policy statement to clearly 
support programs to preserve agriculture on prime farmlands within the 
Limited Growth Area. 

• 
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Supplementary Comments Middlesex County 

III.4. Centers 

A. Re: "Urban-Aid Cities" (State Guide Plan) 

In Middlesex County, New Brunswick and Perth Amboy are designated 
by the SDGP as "urban-aid cities''. As such, they are to receive 
priority in investments, in accordnace.with the State's policy of 
strengthening older cities and discouraging new scattered development 
of the sort that has occurred in the past. 

In general, we believe this policy to be appropriate for the 
County and the State, so long as it does not exclude assistance to 
other more recent major develop~ent concentrations which play a major 
economic role in the State and region. Such newer development concentra­
tions also have an array of needs, especially regarding transportation. 
Underlying these is the need to better integrate such newer concentrations 
with the older urban areas they complement, and with lower-density suburban 
areas. 

A realistic policy for investment prioritization must recognize both 
older and newer existi!)_& economic centers as particu~ar targets for public 
investment, although the types of investment needed will differ in some 
ways. In the older centers, a renewal and strengthening of the urban 
fabric and infrastructure is essential if new private investment is to be 
attracted. In and adjacent to most newer centers, improvements in the 
road and transit networks which link the center itself together with the 
urban/suburban fabric surrounding it are needed. 

Both types of investment priority speak to existing needs of major 
existing economic nodes; both should be recognized in the State Develop­
ment Guide Plan. 

At the same time, we strongly agree with the State and Tri-State 
that public investments should not encourage the development of additional 
economic nodes. 

,. 
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Supplementary Comments - Middlesex Ceuaty 

.. 
III. 4. Centers 

B. Re: ~..ajor Center Designations and Characterizatie~ 

In Middlesex County, the Woodbridge-Metropark econom{e center is 
designated as a "smaller" or "area" center. whereas -New Brunswick is 
designated as a "primary" or "regional" C41tlter. 

The relative designations of these two major aggregations of 
office and retail jobs suggest a difficulty with Tri-State's 
characterization and definition as they apply to major non-downtown 
economic centers which are neither solely highway-oriented shopping 
centers nor isolated corporate buildings along interstate highways. 
The Woodbridge ~ Metropark complex includes both a primarily auto­
oriented shopping center (the larEest in the Northeast) and an office 
area served by the Metropark Amtrak station and the Carden State 
Parkway. Close by is the Hess Comany headquarters building. Total 
office space in this economic center is 1.53 million sq. ft, retail space 
1.52mil11on sq. ft. 

However, unlike the traditional "downtown" central business 
district·as described by Tri-State for a primary center, this center 
has no cultural facilties other than movie theaters,·and no immediately 
adjacent industrial areas, although large industrial aggregations are 
relatively close. Housing, principally suburban single family detached. 
surrounds the Woodbridge - Metropark center on all sides. 

In sum there appearsto benodesignation in Tri-State's system which 
adequately characterizes a Woodbridge-Metropark,which is neither 
"down-town" ;l.n the traditional sense, nor solely highway-oriented, nor 
remote and unifunctional. 

Consequently, we suggest that an additional category be ereated to 
characterize existing ~ew~r centers which .re more similar in size than in 
character to a traditional CBD. 

If an additional category cannot be created at this ttme, we propose 
that Woodbridge-Metropark be designated as a primary or regional center 
instead of a smaller or area center. 

,. 
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Supplementary Comments Middlesex County 

IV. 2. 

' 
Jobs/Housing Balance 

On a regional basis, Tri-St.:lte's policy that ''low and moderate 
income housing should exist even in areas (municipalities·.?) where 
densities are kept low for environmental reasons" seems unexceptionable. 

However, unless the intent of this policy is clarified, it can 
be cited to support those ser.king to develop critical land, in the 
name of low or moderate income housing, in areas where ample non­
sensitive lands are available, albeit at higher cost. This reasoning 
has been used elsewhere in the United States, and in the New York 
region. 

There are two problems with such reasoning. First, environmentally­
sensitive areas lend themselves to !ow/moderate income housing no better 
than to middle/upper income housing; sites inappropriate for one are 
equally inappropriate for the other.- Low/moderate income dwellers should 
not be subjected to environmental hazards not permitted for upper income 
dwellers. 

Second, certain environmentally··sensitive land, while initially 
cheaper than non-sensitive land, ususally is more exp-ensive to properly 
develop because of the need to offset either the environmental hazards 
to the development or the deveL;pment hazards to the environment. 
Consequently, there may be little or no savings in 2roperlv developing 
environmentally sensitive land relative to non-sensitive land. Similarly, to 
carefully develop only the non-sensitive parts of a mostly-sensitive site is 
economically suited only to luxury housing. 

Therefore, we request that Tri-State darify this policy in order that 
it not be misused . 

. · 
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,Supplementary Comments Middlesex County 

.. 

IV.3. Facilities and Services 

Re: Priority for funding of recreational projects 

Both the RDG and the SDGP emphasize the importance or recreation 
projects which serve "older areas" (RDG) or "close-in open s-pace 
and recreation areas for urban residents." {SDGP}. 

However, most recently the majority of the State's Green Acres 
funding has been directed to areas far from centers of population and 
economic development. While not wishing to detract from the conservation 
aspect of such investment in, for example, the Pinelands, we wish to 
note that the State's policy implicit in recent actions s~s to 
contradict that in the SDGP. 

We strongly believe that State's highest investment priority with 
recreation funding should be directed at those portions of the state 
where population pressures - and th11s pressures on recreation and resource 
conservation land - are the highest. 

,. 
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RESOLUTION # CROSS-ACCEPTANCE OF MIDDLESEX COUNTY LAND USE PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Tri-State Regional Planning Commission adopted its land use element 
entitled Regional Vevelopment Guide 1977-2000 by Resolution 541, dated June 9, 
1977, and subsequently amended it by Resolution 556, dated September 29, 1977, 
by Resolution 569, dated January 12, 1978, by Resolution 6"9, dated ,June 14, 1979, 
and by Resolution 650, dated June 14, 1979; and 

WHEREAS, as mandated by Resolution 54·1, the land u:>e element is t0 be reviewed in 
detail with state and subregional planning agencies in an effort to reach con­
sistency of their plans and the Regior~ Development Guide 1977-ZOOO; and 

WHEREAS, the CoiTVllission established procedures for the cross-acceptance of the 
Tri-State/subregional land use plans, by Resolution 575, dated March 9, 1979; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the procedures set forth by Resolution 575, a comparison among 
the M.idde.uex County CompJte.he.ru.-i..ve Ma.~.teJt P.tan, l.and LL6e U.emell}:; 1979 (Draft) and 
related documents of Middlesex County Planning Boar·d, tliP Tri-State R('.gionai. Vevcl­
opment Guide. 1077-2000, and the S:ta.t.r Developme.n;t Gu.we P.ea.n, dated September 1977, 
of the Division of State and Regional Planning, New Jersey Department of Con~unity 
Affairs, has been conducted jointly by the staffs of the above agencies; and 

WHEREAS, the extent of mutual consistency among the above plans has been identified 
by the above parties in a jointly prepared Status Report; and 

WHEREAs: the Middlesex County Planning Board has requested certain changes to the 
maps in the Regional 'Development Guide 1977-2000 that show recorrmended concentra­
tions of nonresidential activities and recorrmended densities for new residential 
developments, and these changes have been evaluated for consistency to the criter­
ia accepted by the Land Use, Environment and Energy Committee for approving changes 
in the above maps; and 

WHEREAS, the Middlesex County Planning Board has cross-accepted the Re.g.i.orral Veve.f­
opment Guide 1077-2000 by resolution of the Board/Agency dated October 9; 1979, with 
the exceptions noted in its resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Land Use, Environment and Energy Committee of the Tri-State Regional 
Planning Commission has evaluated the comparison of the land use elements and 
recommends to the Commission acceptance of the Middlesex County plan with the ex­
ceptions referred to below; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Tri-State Regional Planning Commission accept 
the M.i.dde.uex Cowttu MaJ.teJt Plan, Land 116e. E.teme.n:t and related documents of Middle­
sex County Planning Board, with the exceptions noted on the attached Status Report; 
and 
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BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the the Commission accepts the changes to the maps in the 
Regional Vevetopment Guide 1977-2000 requested by Middlesex County Planning Board 
as '"hown by the attached revised plan maps; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Commission will attempt to resolve the differences 
noted on the attached Status Report, particularly those in the employment target 
figure for year 2000; and 

BE IT FI'RTHER RESOLVED that the Tri-State Regional Planning Commission may, upon 
further study, update, revise or amend its Reg~onaZ Vevetopment GtuUie 1977-2000, 
but if it seeks to change any plan policies, target figures or maps evaluated 
during the cross-acceptance process, it will notify the Middlesex County Plan11ing 
Board of its intention to do so and the reason for the proposed change, and will 
solicit from the Middlesex County Planning Board its review and corrment prior to 
any further Commission action. 

This resolution shall take effect this 15th day of September, 1979. 

KP:hm 
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New Jersey County Planners Association 

One Lafayette Place. 

President 
Elwood A. Jarmer 
Cape May County 

Freehold. 

Vic£> Presirlent 
Donald J. Clark 
ner <JPfl County 

New Jersey 07728 
•. 

Secretary 
tf. Joseph DiPasQuale 

Monmouth County 

(201)431-7460 

Treasurer 
Fred F. Suljic 

Sussex County 

The following statement reg;trdlng the proposed New Jersey Develop-
m c n t G u i d e P 1 an i s o f f c r l~ d on b c h u 1 r o f t h e N e \v J e r ~; e y Coon t y P 1 an n e r s 
J\ s s o c i a t i o n b y E 1 w o o d IL J a I" m c r , I' r c· ~; i. d c 11 r , o n t h .i. s d a t e o f 
September 9, 1980. 

1. Concept The i\ssociat.ion supports the need for and- the 

2. 

concept of a Guide Plan for New Jersey. Such a Guide 
Plan should be adopted in solllc formal process and be 
implemented through all the St:tt,~'s i11vestment and 
regulatory actions. 

l2!tplementation The Association st1pports the c6ncept 
of cross- a c c c pta n c c he tween in d .i. vidual , a clop t. c d County 
Plans and the State Guide Pl~lll. While agreement in 
some cases may he difficult lf at Hll possible, some 
formal process should l•c avail:thle and specifically 
identified in the Guide l'lan. The Association \.;auld be 
pleased to meet <Ud discuss the specific.:; of such a 
formal cross-acceptance process. 

3. P.inclands The seven South ,Jersey County Planning Agencies 
have· serious problems with the Pinelanfls Plan as presently 
constituted. Prior to any inclusioil of the Pinelands 
Plan in the Guide PLJn, the Dvpartlitent of Community 
Affairs should thoroughly review and ev:1.luate the Pinelands 
P l a n r c g ar d i n g c c o n o m i. c i 111 p :1 c t , .s o u n d p 1 a n n i n g , m e t h o d o 1 o g y 
and consistency \-:j th adopted state, regional, county 
and local plans. 
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.INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION 

The Honorable John Paul Doyle 
Legislative Oversight Committee 
Dover Mall 
Rts. 166 & 37 
Toms River, New Jersey 08753 

Dear Mr. Doyle: 

May 14, 1980 

SUPPORT FOR ASSEMBLY BILL - 879 

The New Jersey Industrial Development Association (N. J. IDA) wishes to 
go on record in support-of Assembly Bill 879 sponsored by Assemblymen Hurley 
and Chinnici. 

REASONS FOR SUPPORT 

New Jersey IDA members believe that: 
(1) A comprehensive development guide plan for the State of New Jersey 

absolutely needs the review process described with A-879. 
(2) A public hearing or a series of public hearings is necessary in order 

to include the prpfessional input from-the ·collective interest of New Jersey 
IDA members, SEED members (Society for Environmental, Economic Development), 
NAIOP members (National Association of Industrial & Office Parks) and other 
development organizations that are or could become directly harmed by the 
proposed development guide plan. 

(3) Since the current draft form of the Comprehensive Development Guide 
has been officially used by the staff of the Department of Community Affairs, 
a public hearing could provide to a legislative committee actual examples of 
delay, conflicting decisions, and significant loss of money. These experiences 
from the private and municipal developers should be made part of the consider­
ation before the final form of the New Jersey Comprehensive Development Guide 
is adopted and implemented. 

(4) The New Jersey philosophy should encourage reasonable development of 
industrial and office facilities and not provide a development plan that may 
hinder, prevent, discourage, or possibly stop economic development progress 
within the State during 1980. 

33x 

UNITING NEW JERSEY'S INDUSTRIAL PLANT LOCATION SPECIALISTS 
- ORGANIZED 1953 -



:. ::::::::..·.:~·::::;::..:.::·;; ....................... 
.. ............... .. .................... 

The Honorable William E. Flynne - 2 - May,, 14, 1980 

NEW JERSEY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION 

The New Jersey Industrial Development Association (N. J. IDA) is a non­
profit development organization with a membership uniting 165 of New Jersey's 
economic development and corporation location specialists. The membership 
includes professional industrial developers from State, County and Municipal 
economic development departments; business development department representatives 
from the utilities, railroads, and financial institutions; private office and 
industrial development firms; and the industrial real estate brokers. The sole 
purpose of this organization (founded in 1953) is to promote a balanced job----­
creating development program within the State of New Jersey. The Association 
members attempt to retain New Jersey's existing industrial corporations while 
attracting new and expanding corporations to our State. 

·In recent times, the goal of N. J. IDA has been a difficult task due to the 
numerous review boards, restric_tions, cost of money, infl-ation, etc. One of 
the State's best sources of putting the New Jersey economy back into gear has 
been and still is the industrial and office park developers. our Association 
is extremely concerned that the well-planned industrial or office park may 
become an asset of the past if the existing draft-form of the Comprehensive 
Development Guide Plan is officially adopted and implemented without a full 
review and significant modifications. The New Jersey Industrial Development 
Association membership endorses Assembly Bill No. 879 for passage and signing. 

We thank you for this opportunity to present our views. We would not only 
appreciate your comments on this matter, but would welcome the opportunity to 
discuss this matter with you should you have any questions or require further 
explanation. 

RAY/ls 

34X 

Yours very truly. 

(i. 
President 
New Jersey Indus 
231 Third Street 
Lakewood, New Jersey 08701 

• 
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1979 NEW JERSEY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION 

Thomas Allen 
Com. Plng. Rep. 
Atlantic Electric 
1600 Pacific Avenue 
Atlantic City, N.J. 08404 
609-645-4454 

John W. Andruszko, President 
Jonathan & Associates, Inc. 
Suite 2 E Meadcws Lane Apts. 
Princeton, New Jersey 08540 
609-452-1945 

Joseph Ashe 
Plants, Sites & Parks 
11471 West Sample Road 
Coral Springs, Florida 33065 
305-753-2660 

Fred L. Ashton, Jr. 
Box 565 
Normandy Beach, NJ 08753 

Michael Basarab 
Tax Analyst 
NJ Department of Labor & Industry 
Division of Economic Development 
John Fitch Plaza 
P.O. Box 2766 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
609-292-2121 

William Baughman 
Camden County Eco. Dev. Comm. 
519 Federal Street 
Room 503 
Camden, NJ 08103 
609-964-1162 

Edward Bennett 
Vice President 
Bennett Development Co. 
999 Airport Road 
Lakewood, NJ 08701 
201-364-5454 

MEMBERSHIP 
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ACTIVE MEMBERS 

Bette Benedict 
Small Business Development Rep. 
Div. of Economic Development 
NJ Dept. of Labor & Industry 
P.O. Box 2766 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
609-292- 2935 

William Bennington 
Manager I.D. 
Delaware River Port Authority 
World Trade Division 
Bridge Plaza 
Camden, NJ 08101 

Patrick G. Blaine 
Executive Assistant 
Rockland Electric Company 
75 West Route 59 
Spring Valley, NJ 10977 

Desm::md P. Bell, V.P. 
(replaced by C.G. (Larry) Hartwick) 

Ben Berzin, Jr. 
Assistant Vice President 
First National State Bank of N.J. 
44 West State Street 
Trenton, NJ 08608 

Brian D. Ba bo 
Economic Analyst 
Port Authorithy of NY & NJ(room 72N) 
1 World Trade Center 
New York, NY 10048 
212-466-8578 

Harry Callaghan 
Director 
N.J. Dept. of Labor & Industry 
Div. of Economic Development 
Labor & Industry Building Room 706 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
609-292-7757 



Saverio Cappello 
Manager, Industrial Development 
Port Authority of NY & NJ Room 60E 
One World Trade Center 
New YOrk, NY 10048 
212-466-8857 

Steven A. Cole 
Second Vice President 
Fidelity Union Trust Company 
765 Broad Street 
Newark, NJ 07101 
201-4.30-4000 

John A. Colonna, Director 

- 2-

Middlesex County Industrial & Eco. Dev. 
841 Georges Road · 
North Brunswick, NJ 08902 
201-745-.3000 

Charles E. Connell, Jr., Chief 
Office of Industrial Development 
Division of Economic Development 
State of New Jersey 
NJ Dept. of Labor & Industry 
P.O. Box 2766 
John Fitch Plaza 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
609-292-2462 

Jane Correale 
Industrial Rep. 
County of Morris 
Dept. of Ind. & Econ. Dev. 
Court House 
Morristown, NJ 07960 
201-285-6191 

Arthur Cox 
Director, P. R. 
NJ State Chamber of Commerce 
5 Commerce Street 
Newark, NJ 07102 
201-623-7070 

Harold Craft 
Assistant Manager 
Somerset County Econ. Dev. Off. 
Administration Building 
Somerville, NJ 08876 
201~725-4700, ext. 208 

ACTIVE r-EMBERS 
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John Crandall 
Executive Director 
County Dev. Council 
.38 Newton Avenue 
Woodbury, NJ 08096 
609-85.3-1700 

Charles N. Cuidera, Planning Dir. 
Essex Co. Planning, Econ. Dev. & 

Conservation 
520 Belleville Avenue 
Belleville, NJ 07109 
201-751-7.300 

Louis Dalberth 
Director 
South N.J. Development Council 
One New York Avenue 
Atlantic City, NJ 08401 
609-645-4484 

Robert DeSantis 
Woodbridge TOwnship 
One Main Street 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 
201-6.34-17.31 

James Desmond 
Colonial First National Bank 
.30.3 Broad Street 
P.O. Box 729 
Redbank, NJ 07701 
201-741-1000, ext 428 

Reid Dickerson 
Community Representative 
Division of Economic Development 
State of New Jersey 
P.O. Box 2766 
Trenton, NJ 08625 

Roy Duckworth, Regional Dir. P.R. 
Jersey Central Power & Light Co. 
Madison Ave. at Punch Bowl Rd. 
Morristown, NJ 07960 
201-455-8200 

Arthur J. Durett - Bus. Dev. Office 
First National State Bank - Edison 
Route 27 & Stony Road vlest 
Edison, NJ 08817 
201-985-0500 
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William Faherty, Jr. 
Vice President 
First National Bank of N.J. 
550 Broad Street 
Newark, NJ 07102 
201-565-3"224 

Alfred Faiella 
Executive Director 
Newark Economic Development Corp. 
744 BroadStreet 
Ne1vark, NJ 07102 
201-643-2780 

Robert Ferguson 
P. 0. Box 2098 
Edison, NJ 08817 
201-494-5616 

Edward Foley 
677 Broadway 
Bayonne, NJ 07002 
201-436-0120 

Robert H. Franklin 
General Manager 
Urban Affairs & Area Development 
Public Service Electric & Gas 
80 Park Place, Room 111 
NevJark, NJ 07101 
201-430-5925 

Joseph A. Furfey, Manager . 
Area Development & Urban Affairs 
First Jersey National Bank 
1 Exchange Place 
Jersey City, NJ 07303 
201-547-7429 

Frank Furniss, C. D. Rep. 
Di v. of Economic Development 
1100 Raymond Blvd. 
Newark, NJ 07102 
201-648-24)5 

t-ti]{e Galdo 
Div. of Econ. Dev. 
1100 Raymond Blvd. 
NeHark, NJ 07102 
201-648-2455 
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ACTIVE MEMBERS 

s. Charles Garofalo 
Director 
Dept. of Ind. & Econ. Dev. 
County of Morris 
Courthouse 
Morristown, NJ 07960 
201-285-6191 

Mr. Geis 
Acting Director 
First National State Bank of Central 

Jersey 
44 West State Street 
Trenton, NJ 08608 
609-396-4060 

Gail Giordano· 
Eatontown Ind. Dev. 
Borough Hall 
47 Broad Street 
Eaton, NJ 077'2.4 
201-542-3105 

Leonard Goldner, Financial Specialist 
Division of Economic Development 
P.O. Box 2766 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
609-292-9587 

Joseph Grossi 
Comm. Development Representative 
Division of Economic Development 
1100 Raymond Blvd. 
Newark, NJ 07102 
201-648-2455 

Rocco Guerrieri, Administrator 
Department of Labor & Industry 
Office of Business Advocacy 
P.O. Box 2766 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
609-292-0700 

Arthur Ham, Executive Director 
Township of Wayne Ind. Comm. 
475 Valley Road 
Wayne, NJ 07470 
201-694-1800 

Robert Hamlin, Director 
Cumberland County Economic Development 
800 East Commerce Street 
Bridgeton, NJ 08302 
609-451-8000, ext. 387 



J. Thomas Hannon 
Second Vice President 
Fidelity Union Trust Co. 
765 Broad Street 
Newark, NJ 07101 
201-430-4533 

J. Kevin Hastings 
Div. of Economic Development 
P .0. Box 2766 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
609-984-3408 

James F. Hennessy, Jr. 
Representative 
Ocean Township Industrial Dev. Comm. 
416 Roosevelt Avenue 
Oakhurst, NJ 07755 

Ronald M. Heymann 
General Manager, Resident Services 
New Jersey Bell Telephone Co. 
540 Broad Street Room 1900 
Newark, NJ 07101 
201-649-4533 

Jeffrey A. Horn, Business Advocacy 
Specialist 

Office of Business Advocacy 
Dept. of Labor & Industry 
P.O. Box 2766 
John Fitch Plaza 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
609-292-0700 

George Hullen 
C.D. Representative 
P. 0. Box 2766 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
609-292-2462 

Thomas Hyde, Secretary 
N.J. Fed. of Planning Officials 
1308 Wood Valley Rd. 
Hountainside, NJ 

Paul B. Jarrett, III 
As~istant Vice President 
First National Bank of Central Jersey 
1125 Route 22 West, Box 6776 
Bridgevmter,, NJ 08807 
201-685-8394 
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Hinor E. Johnson, Jr. 
Industrial Agent, ConRail e.<((> AD :::T. 
-3-2 Commerce :3-t:reet 1'1 '-f 
Newark, NJ 07102 
201 62-h;s7ti'W L:,L{ ~(oL{,f 

Roger Johnson 
Executive Director 
Woodbridge Chamber of Commerce 
655 Amboy Avenue 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 
201-636-4040 

Charles Jones, III 
C. D. Representative 
Division of Economic Development 
1100 Raymond Blvd. 
Newark, NJ 07102 
201-648-245 5 

Charles Jones 
Vice President 
Branch Administration 
Midlantic National Bank 
525 Main Street 
East Orange, NJ 07018 
201-648-2455 

Henry E. Jorgensen 
Vice Chairman 
Montville New Jersey Ind. Comm. 
Montville Municipal Bldg. River Road 
Kontville, NJ 07045 
201-334-1644 

Roger J. Kane, Director 
Dept. of Industrial & Eco. Dev. 
County of Monmouth 
Hall of Records Annex 
Main Street, Room 213 
Freehold, NJ 07728 

Paul M. Kaywork 
Area Dev. Coordinator 
Public Service Elec. & Gas Co. 
80 Park Place Room 111 
newark, NJ 07101 
201-430-6056 

Donald Kelly 
Cape May Economic Development Ccmm. 
P.O. Box 315 
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Thomas Kelly 
Thomas Kelly Associates 
First Jersey National Bank 
1 Exchange Place 
Jersey City, NJ 07303 

P~chard Koch, President 
Leone Mortgage Corp. 
440 54th Street 
West New York, NJ 07093 
201-863-2060 

Christopher Kennan 
Acting L'ircdor 
Mercer Co~~ty Div. of Eco. Dev. 
P.O. Box 8068 
Trenton. NJ 08650 
609-989.:.o555 

L. Michael Krieger 
Regional & Economic Dev. Task Force 
Project ¥.ar:.ager 
Port Authority of NY & NJ 
One World Trade Center Room 72N 
New York 1 NJ 10048 
212-466-8567 

Stephen ·•:ukr.n 
Public s~rvice Elec. & Gas Co. 
80 Park Flace Room 111 
Newark, J·J,J 07101 
201-tj)te •?2 a '·Do ~.s 7 2 ° 
Edward I .er. ... :'...han, Vice President 
Public Service Elec. & Gas Co. 
80 Park PJacP. Room 8323 
Nei..rark, ;lj',) 07101 
201-430.. :>70J 

John Le-:- '. ~ ~ Chairman 
Sayrevi-, ·, -c Ind. Conun. 
123 Mil ' -· c tvenue 
Sayrevi-1 j -o. 7 NJ 088'72 
201-257 ·-! 7·J0 

Howard Lml-i~rback, Vice President 
The Nat.ior;al State Bank 
28 West :.::r,R+-e Street 
Trenton, r~~ 08605 
609-396-1 ~~:;0 

D.F. ~b(h~rley, Director 
Manage:r L,ciustrial Dev. 
Consolid:d_,ed Rail, Room 1910 
1528 Walu.ut Street 
PhiladelrLi.;, PA 19104 
215-893---AG)1 
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John Maddocks 
Manager, Area Development 
Public Service Elec. & Gas Co. 
80 Park Place Room 111 
Newark, NJ 07101 
201-430-5920 

Louis D. Magrelli, Vice President 
The Trust Company of New Jersey 
35 Journal Square 
Jersey City, NJ 07306 
201-653-4100 

James Mahon, Assistant Manager 
Public Service Elec. & Gas Co. 
418 Federal Street 
Camden, NJ 08101 
609-365-7000 

J. Raymond Manahan 
c. D. Representative 
Division of Economic Development 
Dept. of Labor & Industry 
P.O. Box Z766 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
609-292-2462 

Kenneth M. Marchi 
Area Dev. Representative 
Public Service EJ.'ec. & Gas Co. 
80 Park Place Room 111 
Newark, NJ 07101 
201-430-5917 

Robert J. Marengo, Coordinator 
55-57 High Street 
Newton, NJ 07868 
201-383-1217 

Fred :Vazurek 
Ind. & Econ. Dev. Coordinator 
City of Perth Amboy 
260 High Street 
Perth Amboy, NJ 08861 

Matthew McKenna, Chairman 
Raritan Tbwnship Industrial Committee 
South Main Street 
Flemington, NJ 08822 
201-685-5376 

ACTIVE MEMBERS 
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Kevin J. McLernon, 
Executive Director 
Joint Burlington Econ. Dev. Corp. 
P.O. Box 302 
Burlington, NJ 08016 
609-387-0963 

Joseph Nen:yo 
Director of Ind. Affairs 
Tovmship of Woodbridge 
1 Main Street 
'vJoodbridge, NJ Cf7095 
201-634-4500, ext 231 or 
201-634-1731 

Rose C. Nini 
Small Business Development 
Div. of Econ. Dev. 
NJ Dept. of Labor & Industry 
P.O. Box Z?66 
Trenton, NJ 08625 

Irene Novak 
Executive Director 
Perth Amboy-Raritan Bay Area 

Chamber of Commerce 
313 State Street 
Perth Amboy, NJ 08861 
201-442-7400 

Bernard P. O'Connor 
Area Dir. Ind. Dev. 
Consolidated Rail Corp. 
~ · l''4 r;;.--;,:J~" <-3-e Gonunei ce Sb ect. ., '"' · · · "'' 
Newark, NJ 07102 
'ZfYt=-6~ 6 y 't ~ ' . ;:_ '! 

•,;:J ~.., . 

Nichael O'Connor 
llarket Analyst 
Howard P. Hoffman Associates, Inc. 
122 E. 42nd Street 
!Jew York, Ne'.-J York 10017 

Edmund Oehlers 
365 D Old Nassau Road 
Rossmoor 
Jamesburg, NJ 08831 

?c0bert Palasits 
Dir. Flawing 
Elizabethtm-m 1.·Jc.ter Co. 
Elizabethtovm Plaza 
Elizabeth, NJ 07202 
201-354-4444 

- 6-

40x 
ACTIVE t-1EMBE:ft?, 

Charles Parton 
Executive Vice President 
Colonial First Natior~l Bank 
303 Broad Street 
Red Bank, NJ 07701 
201-741-1000 

Robert Pettegrew 
Executive Director 
South Jersey Port Corporation 
2500 Broadway 
Camden, NJ 08104 
609-541-8500 

Mr. Raymond Petterson, Director 
Office of State Economic Planning 
142 West State Street 
Trenton, NJ 08625 
609-292-9200 

James L. Paul 
Dir. of Public Relations 
American Telephone & Telegraph 
295 North Haple Avenue 
Room 5306C2 
Basking Ridge, NJ 07920 

Larry Pfleger 
Dir. of Marketing 
Whitesell Construction Inc. 
1819 Unden:ood Blvd. 
Delran, NJ 08075 

Neil Piro 
President of County Dev. Corp. 
26 Journal Square 
Jersey City, New Jersey 07306 
201-798-4200 

David K. Pitcher 
N.J. Bell Telephone Company 
540 Broad Street Room 305 
Nevmrk, NJ 07101 
201-649-2226 

Frank Politano 
C. D. hep. 
Div. of Econ. Development 
P. 0. Box 2766 
T:t·· n t n !l 7 1 : • J • 
6G9-292-2Lo2 
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~1gene R. Preston 
V. P. Sales & Real Estate 
Manhony-Troast Construction Co. 
790 Bloomfield Avenue 
Clifton, N.J. 07012 
201-777-0200 

r~.crmeth P Jle 
Mgr. C & I 
Atlantic Electric 
1600 Pacific Avenue 
Atlanti.:: Ci:vYr N.J. 08404 
609-6" ~·-+1443 

George ~gers, Director 
Burlington Cty. Dept. Eco. Dev. 
49 Rancr,cas Road 
Mt. Ho:....l.r, N.J. 08060 
609-267-3272 

Timothy P..ogers. 
11 Pint· 'I'ree Lane 
Morris f:ains, N.J. 07950 
201-26r-L..618 

Joseph ?... hl.dolfi 
Community Development Representative 
N.J. D .... :,:;,t... of Labor & Industry 
Division of Economic Development 
P.O. Box Z?b6 
Trentm,, ili.J. 08625 
609-29:: ·21;.62 

Donald 3<:;-.;.w 

Comm. Dev. Representative 
Divisio~ .J: Economic Development 
1100 Ray:ucL.1 Blvd. 
Nei-Jc::.rk, (~ • .J. 07102 
201-64'!. <:i~ )j 

C. Free ~-;( tnken 1 President 
Berge:: :~,, ·~-..., of Commerce 
p. 0. .:.:...:,·~ 7 ;~8 
Pararrrus, ;.; •. J. 07652 

. 201-967---:.C.(';\J 

John s:c .. \ 
Heg. Vic, President 
New Je~· -'·'.i' :Jational funk 
2300 A~~ .• ·::{ Avenue 
Nept11n,· .. , :. ,J. 07753 
201-77::,-: c:oo 
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ACTIVE 1-lE~':JlERS 

iJilliam W. Schroeher 
Vice President 
Franklin State Bank 
630 Franklin Blvd. 
Somerset, N.J. 07753 
201-745-6309 

William Snyder 
Coordinator 
Mark Forrest Associates 
635 Wood Street 
Vineland, N.J. 08360 
609-691-4947 

Donald Squillante 
Vice President 
New Jersey National Bank 
2300 Asbury Avenue 
Neptune, N.J. 07753 
201-775-3800 

Kenneth Stewart 
Vice President 
Somerset Trust Co.· 
34 West Hain Street 
Somerville, N.J. 08876 
201-685-8874 

Raymond Stone 
Public Affairs Manager 
Orange & Rockland Utilities 
75 West Route 59 
Spring Valley, N.Y. 10977 
914-352-6000 

Herbert Stoolman, Secretary 
Camden Cty. Economic Dev. Comm. 
519 Federal Street 
Suite 503 
Camden, N.J. 08103 
609-757-8187 

John V. Spinale 
Publicity Director 
Mercer Cty. Div. of Eco. Dev. 
310 West State Street 
Trenton, N.J. 08618 
609-989-8767 

Jon P. Spinnanger 
Urban Affairs 
8 Park Place 
Newark, NJ 07101 
201-649-J452 



Susanna 'linnes 
Industrial Rep. 
Somerset County Econ. Dev. Office 
County Administration Bldg. 
Somerville, N.J. 088?6 
201-725-4700, ext. 208 

George Temkin, 
Economic Representative 
Division of Economic Development 
Labor & Industry Building 
Trenton, N •. J. 08625 
609-292-2462 

Robert F. Thompson 
Assistant Vice President 
Nevl Jersey Bank 
100 Plaza Center 
Secaucus, N.J. 07094 
201-866-2100 

Thomas Trotta 
Supv. I. & C. 
Elizabethtown Gas Co. 
184 Elm Street 
Westfield, N.J. 07090 
201-289-5000, ext. 277 

Julie Tvmitmann 
Nodern Gas Serv. Corp. 
1 Hartz Hay 
Secaucus, N.J. 07094 
201-348-1700 

Julius Varga, Chairman 
Frar~in Township Ind. Comm. 
A~~inistration Building 
Somerset, N.J. 088?3 
201-873-2500, ext. 281 

Ellis S. Vieser 
t·ianaging Director 
::. J. Alliance for Action 
:20 Highland Avenue - Suite 201 
~etuchen, N.J. 08845 
2C'l-4 94-7077 

'-Tc::::es Waldron 
P.O. 3ox 182 
&3a Isle City, N.J. 
LC)-729-12.87 

08243 
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AC 'l'l VE t-1EMBERS 

James L. Wal~er 
Manager Marketing Services 
So. Jersey Gas Co. 
1 South Jersey Plaza 
Route 54 
Folsom, N.J. 08037 

John F. Walsh, 
Director of Finance 
N.J. Econ. Development Authority 
John Fitch Plaza 
P.O. Box 1446 
Trenton, N.J. 08625 
609-292-1800 

William R. Walters 
Housing Coordinator 
City Hall 
118? Main Avenue 
Clifton, N.J. 07015 
201-473-2600 7 t!!JUBD ~ 

Henry Watson, Director 
Health Data Research & Analysis Services 
P.O. Box 540 
Trenton, N.J. 08625 
609-984-6703 

Michael F. Whelan 
Executive Director 
Bergen County A. D. Council 
Continental Plaza 
411 Hackensack Avenue, Room 903 
Hackensack, N.J. 07601 
201-343-3100 

Richard Williams, Director 
Somerset County - Office of Eco. Dev. 
County Administration Building 
Somerville, N.J. 088?6 
201-725-4700 

Mr. Robert Woodford 
Vice President - Policy Development 
New Jersey Business & Ind. Assoc. 
P.O. Box 2708 
Trenton, H. J. 08607 
609-771-0600, eA~. 430 

Arthur T. ':.'oung 
Arthur T. ':.'oung A:=soci::.tc:: 
40 Brunswick Ave. 
P.O. Box 4l3 
TJdi~:on, IJ.J. 08217 
:)01<~(·'7-(~:_ 1 0 
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Robert A. Young 
Director Industrial Development 
Township of Lakewood 
231 Third Street 
Lakewood, N.J. 08701 
201-364-2500, ext. 59 

s~-lv<Jr. Zipper 
Executive Secretary 
Elizabeth Industrial Commission 
City Hall 
Elizabeth, N.J. 07201 
2o1-353--c({)O 
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Ray Allen 
201 Manhattan Avenue 
Union City, N.J. 07087 
201-863-6408 

Robert Anderson 
Vice President 
David Cronheim Company 
205 Main Street 
Chatham, N.J. 07928 
201-635-2180 

James F. Black, Jr. 
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Black's Guide- Office and Industrial 
74 Shrewsbury Avenue 
Red Bank, N.J. 07701 

John H. Boyd 
The Boyd Company 
29 Emmons Drive 
Princeton, N.J. 08540 
609-924-3613 

J. Brien Corney, Director 
Corporate Real Estate 
Curtiss Wright Corp. 
1 Passaic Street 
Wood-Ridge, N.J. 07075 
201-777-2900 

John Ensign 
Building Sales 
Arrrco Steel Corp. 
1 Plymoth Meeting 
Plymoth Meeting, P~ 19462 

Stanley Ford 
Executive Vice President 
Gabriel Realty 
1 E. Ridge\vood Avenue 
P.O. Box 547 
Faramus, N.J. 07652 

Clifford J. Garrigan, Jr. 
Tne C.J. Garrigan Agency 
Box 51 
!-lontville, N.J. 
201-696-8976 

07045 

!=:ic:hard J. Gillolly, 
·Ji:::e President 
Alexander Summer Co. 
10 Rooney Circle 
';J·.::::.t Orange, N.J. 07052 
:201-736-9000 
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ASSOCI A 'lli MEMiiERS 

Richard A. Gilsenan 
Gilsenan & Company 
215 E. Ridgewood Avenue 
Ridgewood, N.J. 07451 
201-445-1600 

Robert Goodrich, Consultant 
428 Prospect Avenue 
Shark River Hills 
Neptune, N.J. 07753 

C. G. Hartwick 
First National Bank of New Jersey 
515 Union Boulevard 
Totowa, N.J. 07512 

John Kitchen 
Vice President 
Pioneer National Title Insurance 
2 Maple Avenue 
Morristown, N.J. 07960 
201-455-0770 

John E. Knott 
Executive Vice President 
Whitesell Enterprises 
1919 Underwood Blvd. 
Delvan, N.J. 08075 
609-829-2600 

Thomas A. Leahy 
General Manager 
Modern Gas Service Co. 
One Hartz Way 
Secaucus, N.J. 07094 
201-348-1700 

Ronald Mahr 
Sales Representative 
Alexander Summer Co. 
10 Rooney Circle 
West Orange, N.J. 07052 
201-736-9000 

Bart B. Montalbano, Realtor 
805 Clifton Avenue 
Clifton, N.J. 07013 
201-779-4411 

Frank J. Pepitone 
N.J. Land Project ~1anager 
Abbey Glen Realty Corp. 
R. D. 2, Box 95 
Crfm bu t'Y, fl. ,J. OP. 5' ;::• 
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Jeffrey Persky 
Sales Assoc. 
Eric Bram & Company 
77 Milltovm Road 
East Brunswick, N.J. 
201-238--3500 

08816 

Henry P. R"l.giel 1 Architect 
Philips Kaui'rnan & Associates 
310 South Street. 
Harristown, N.J. 07960 

Paul J. Shaffery 
Assistant Director 
Monmouth County Industrial & Eco. Dev. 
Main Street 
Freehold, N.J. 07728 

Michael Shalit, President 
Eric Bram & Company 
77 Milltown Road 
East Brunsvri.ck, N.J. 08816 
201-238-3500 

Herman C. Simonse 
Vice Pres~: . .icnt 
Bellemeaf De';elopment Corp. 
1200 Wall Street West 
Lyndhurst, N.J. 07071 
201-438-tBOO 

Joseph S::-:: L:, President 
State Ind~~trial Directory Corp. 
2 Penn Plr~za 
NeVI' York. :'J. Y. 
212-564-i,li/) 

David S. ~)·~f-iner 

10001 

Ex.ecutiv·:::. J:..:;e President 
Sudler Cc:1struction Co. , Inc. 
L2 Commc ·:e ~;treet 
1'·.::\•iark, N.J. 07102 
201-62:?-J: 30 

Vice President - N.J. Manager 
?ionccr l'~::>t.ional Title Insurance 
320 Broad Street 
Red Bank, lJ.J. 07701 
201-842-7J8h 
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F. Raymond Wood 
David T. Houston Company 
1025 Broad Street 
Bloomfield, N.J. 07003 
201-429-8000 

Frederick 0. Ziegler, President 
Consultant & Planner 
Juliustown Road 
Columbus, N.J. 08022 

ASSOCI A 'lE MEl'lBERS 



Richard R. Crane 
25 ·Wilson Terrace 
Elizabeth, N.J. 07208 
201-355-0428 

Alvin Hopkins 
Vice President 
Joseph L. Muscarelle, Inc. 
Essex Street at Rt. 17 
Maywood, N.J. 07607 
201-845-8100 

William Jamieson 
Conquestadore Apt. 
1800 Southeast San Lucie Blvd. 
Bldg. 3 - Apt. 104 
Stuart, Florida 33494 

Levere M. Leese 
5 Lynnfield Dirve 
Norristown, N.J. 07968 
201-267-1283 

Mr. L. 'Ihomas Leonard 
Real Estate Representative 
Jersey Central Power & Light Co. 
Ridgedale Avenue 
East Hanover, N.J. 07936 

Grant Parry 
2573 Clearview Avenue 
Ventura, CA 93001 

George Reynolds 
404 Graisbury Avenue 
Haddonfield, N.J. 08033 

J.V. Richards 
Vice President 
Planning & Development 
N.J. Natural Gas Co. 
Asbury Park, N.J. 07712 
201-774-2424 

G. !4athis Sleeper 
Director of Development 
N~J. PUblic Broadcasting Authority 
1573 Parkside Avenue 
Trenton, N.J. 08600 

William Yocum 
102 Stcnton Avenue 
Blue Bell, PA 19h22 
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